
Annual Report and 
Financial Statements

BIAS Short Duration Income Fund received a Morningstar Rating ™  
of  as at  30/06/10  

BIAS Global Balanced Fund received a Morningstar Rating ™  

of  as at  30/06/10  

BIAS Global Equities Fund received a Morningstar Rating ™  

of  as at  30/06/10  

Annual Report and
Financial Statements

BIAS Short Duration Income Fund received a Morningstar Rating ™ 
of as at  31/12/2013

BIAS Global Balanced Fund received a Morningstar Rating ™ 
of as at  31/12/2013

BIAS Global Equities Fund received a Morningstar Rating ™ 
of as at  31/12/2013

As of December 31, 2013





As of December 31, 2013

WorldWorldSimplifying a
of Investment Opportunities

Cash 2%
Fixed Income 28.2%
Equities 69.8%

North America 54.2%

Europe 26.6%

Smaller Asia 3.3%

Japan 7.9%

Latin America 2.5%

Australia 2.8%

Other 2.7%

Technology 3.1%
Industrials 17.5%
Financials 20.2%
Consumer Staples 12.4%
Consumer Disc. 12.6%
Basic Materials 11.8%
Health Care 10.6%
Utilities 1.0%
Telecom Services 3.2%
Energy 7.6%

For more information on any of our funds, contact your investment advisor or download a prospectus, which contains important information about a fund’s investment goals,
sales charges, expenses and risks. Please read the prospectus carefully before investing.

LIBOR FRN 7%
CPI FRN 2%
0-1 yr 9%
1-3 yr 67%
3-5 yr 12%
Cash 3%

BIAS Short Duration Income Fund

Invests in high quality money market and short duration income
producing instruments denominated primarily in US dollars which
offer liquidity, low risk and attractive returns.

Suitable for captive insurers and those with a very low risk toler-
ance or a short time horizon.

BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund

Securities owned are primarily common stocks with a history of
raising dividends annually for at least five years. Such a strategy
has provided higher returns with lower volatility than a broad large
cap equity index over the long term.

Suitable for investors that understand market risk with a long time
horizon and an income objective.

BIAS Global Equities Fund

Maximize long-term capital appreciation via a diverse mix of
global securities. Strategic allocations are made in various geo-
graphic, sector, style, and market capitalizations to exploit long-
term trends and minimize risk. 

Suitable for investors with a higher tolerance for risk and a long
time horizon.

rehgihrewol

rehgihrewol

rehgihrewol

BIAS Global Balanced Fund

Invests in a mixture of money market, fixed income, and equity
securities providing outperformance through strategic and tactical
asset class shifts. Weightings are determined by the expected
returns and risks within each asset class.  

Suitable for conservative to moderate investors who seek
medium- to long-term real capital appreciation whilst minimizing
risk through asset class diversification.

rehgihrewol

www.biasglobalportfolios.com
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BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

Robert R. Pires
Chairman
BIAS Global Portfolios SPC
BIAS Short Duration Income Fund  – US$ Segregated Portfolio
August 4, 2014

INVESTMENT POLICY
The objective of the Segregated Portfolio (the “Fund”) is to offer a convenient and efficient vehicle for 
investing in high quality money market and short duration income producing instruments denominated 
mainly in US dollars which offer liquidity, low risk and attractive returns consistent with prudent 
investment management.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
We are pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Fund for the year ended 
December 31, 2013. The net asset value per shares of the Fund decreased from $112.13 as at 
December 31st 2012 to $111.30 as at December 31st 2013 representing a total return after fees of    
-0.74% for the 2013 calendar year. The net asset value of the Fund declined over the year to $14.2 million 
as at 31st December 2013 from $27.1 million at the beginning of the year, largely due to the rotation of 
investors’ assets to the BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund. The Manager ensured that the Fund 
maintained adequate liquidity through holding a substantial portion of the Fund’s assets in highly liquid 
US Treasury securities.

ANNUAL REVIEW
Over the course of the year, we gradually reduced the Fund’s inflation-linked holdings in favour of US 
Treasuries maturing in three-to-five years as interest rate hikes from the Fed were pushed back and 
inflation was tepid. However, holding longer-maturity bonds in early June cost the Fund in relative 
performance against the benchmark as yields rose sharply across the curve following Fed Chairman Ben 
S. Bernanke’s speech on June 19 said the central bank may begin reducing quantitative easing in 2013 
and end it in early 2014.

Corporate bonds underperformed Treasuries following Bernanke’s speech on June 19, additionally 
pricing on these bonds was volatile as liquidity was poor. For this reason we chose to hold the corporate 
bonds until maturity, resulting in a shorter duration relative to the duration of the Fund’s Treasury 
holdings. In addition, we went marginally down in credit quality as economic conditions improved.

We added LIBOR-linked floating rate notes to the Fund in anticipation of rising interest rates amid a 
gradually improving economy and as protection should the Fed raise interest rates earlier than expected.
 
OUTLOOK
As we begin 2014, we believe the Fund is well positioned as 12% of the portfolio is invested in bonds 
maturing in three-to-five years. We do not expect shorter-dated interest rates to change much in 2014 
as the Fed maintains monetary stimulus and for this reason, holding bonds maturing in three-to-five years 
should perform well while delivering better yields. 

The balance sheets of many US companies are very strong and debt issued by these companies 
provides better yields relative to US Treasuries. We expect corporate bonds to outperform government 
bonds longer term, yet, price volatility may be high due to lack of liquidity.
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Short Duration Income Fund US$

Current Strategy Allocation Risk Rating

A convenient and efficient vehicle for investing in high quality
money market and short duration income-producing securities,
denominated primarily in US dollars which offer liquidity, low
risk, and attractive returns consistent with prudent investment
management.

Suitable for those with a very low risk tolerance or short term
time horizon.

low high

Management Commentary
The Short Duration Income fund declined in the Fourth Quarter
as all but the very shortest Treasury yields rose on improving
economic data and the Fed’s announcement to begin reducing
bond purchases in January 2014. Investment grade fixed
coupon corporate bonds outperformed Treasuries but the
fund’s floating-rate-notes lagged the benchmark due to poor
liquidity. At the end of the quarter the fund was fully invested in
US dollar-denominated securities and held no foreign currency
exposure.

Inception Date December 29, 2006

Base Currency USD

Benchmark Citigroup 1-3yr 
Treasury Index

NAV per share $111.30

Subscriptions/Redemptions Weekly

Management Fee 0.15% 

Fund Information

Performance
Performance Q4/13 1-Year 2-Year

(Annualized)
3-Year

(Annualized)
Since Incept.

(Annualized)

Short Duration -0.21% -0.74% -0.24% -0.08% 1.54%

Benchmark 0.06% 0.37% 0.40% 0.75% 2.69%

AAA 1%
AA+ 51%
AA 15%
AA- 16%
A+ 5%
A 7%
A- 5%

Morningstar Rating ™ 
of as at 31/12/2013

As of December 31, 2013

Modified Duration 1.73

Average Credit AA

Gross YTW 0.69%

Gross Current Yield 3.57%

Number of Holdings 25

AUM $14,173,108.40

Key Statistics

Listed on the Cayman Islands Stock Exchange and approval by the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority.
For more information on any of our funds, contact your investment advisor or download a prospectus, which contains important information about a fund’s investment goals, sales charges,

expenses and risks. Please read the prospectus carefully before investing.

www.biasglobalportfolios.com

Credit Ratings

Top Holdings
US Treasury Note 4.250% Due 15 Aug 2015 7.83%

US Treasury Note 4.625% Due 15 Nov 2016 6.07%

BP Capital
Markets PLC 3.875% Due 10 Mar 2015 6.03%

US Treasury Note 4.50% Due 15 Feb 2016 6.00%

US Treasury Note 4.125% Due 15 May 2015 5.76%

LIBOR FRN 7%
CPI FRN 2%
0-1 yr 9%
1-3 yr 67%
3-5 yr 12%
Cash 3%
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KPMG
P.O. Box 493 
Century Yard, Cricket Square 
Grand Cayman  KY1-1106 
CAYMAN ISLANDS 

Telephone             +1 345 949 4800 
Fax                           +1 345 949 7164 
Internet     www.kpmg.ky 

KPMG, a Cayman Islands partnership and a member �rm of the 
KPMG network of independent member �rms a�liated with KPMG 
International, a Swiss cooperative. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of:
BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC – BIAS Global Short Duration Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BIAS Global Short Duration Income Fund – US$ 
Segregated Portfolio (the “Fund”), which comprise the statement of financial position, as at December 31, 2013, the 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the Fund’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 
December 31, 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

June 24, 2014 
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 2102  3102  etoN   

Assets 
 910,649 $ 260,804 $ 5 ,3 stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4, 5, 9  13,669,526  25,895,189 
Interest and other income r  046,462  607,711   elbaviece

 051  051   elbaviecer snoitpircsbuS
 241,93  813,5   stessa rehtO

 041,541,72  267,002,41   stessa latoT 
        

Equity
 955,240,42 $ 687,243,11 $ 7 kcots latipac fo serahs no ni diap latipac teN
 675,489,2  323,038,2   sgninrae deniateR

       
 531,720,72 $ 901,371,41 $  )stessa ten( ytiuqe latoT
        

Liabilities 
 440,5  92   elbayap snoitpmedeR
 063,78  426,72  6 sesnepxe deurcca dna elbayap stnuoccA

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4, 5, 9 - 25,601

 500,811  356,72   seitilibail latoT 
        

Total equity and liabilities  041,541,72 $ 267,002,41 $  
        

 240,142  243,721  7 gnidnatstuo serahS A ssalC
        

Net asset value per share   31.211 $ 03.111 $  
        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Authorised for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on June 24, 2014: 

ROBERT R. PIRES   MARK MELVIN  
    

 rotceriD  rotceriD

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)
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 2102  3102  etoN   

Investment income 
 560,315 $ 372,881 $  emocni tseretnI
 436,81  578,02   emocni rehto dna sdnediviD

Net realised loss on sale of financial assets and  
 liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4  (64,713)  (819,370) 
Change in net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets 
 and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4, 11  (127,260)  696,399 

 )587,6(  )608,51(   ssol egnahcxe ngierof teN

 349,104  963,1   emocni tnemtsevni latoT 
        

Expenses 
 )609,751(  )095,75(  6 seef tnemeganaM
 )255,5(  )203,2(   esnepxe xat gnidlohhtiW
 )889,45(  )930,93(  6 seef noitartsinimda dna ydotsuC
 )836,55(  )296,15(   sesnepxe lareneg rehtO
 )766,6(  )000,5(  6 seef ’srotceriD

 )157,082(  )326,551(   sesnepxe latoT 
        

(Loss)/ Income for the year  291,121 $ )452,451( $  
        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)
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   Total equity 
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 37,318,385 

    
Income for the year  121,192 

    
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

 805,344,7  serahS A ssalC fo eussI
 )059,558,71(  serahS A ssalC fo noitpmedeR

 (10,412,442) 

Balance as at December  $ 2102 ,13 27,027,135

Loss for the year  (154,254) 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 
Issue of Class A Shares  2,730,958 
Redemption of Class A Shares  (15,430,730) 

 (12,699,772) 

Balance as at December  $ 3102 ,13 14,173,109

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)
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 2102  3102     

Cash flows from operating activities 
 291,121 $ )452,451( $     raey eht rof emocnI /)ssoL(

Adjustments to reconcile (loss)/income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 
Amortization and accretion of bond premiums and discounts  523,946  834,713 

 )356,563,41(  )381,672,5(  stnemtsevni fo esahcruP 
 Proceeds from sale and maturity of  306,140,42  192,276,61  stnemtsevni 
 Net realised loss on sale and maturity of financial assets and 
  liabilities at fair value through profit and loss  160,786  651,713 
 Change in net unrealised loss/(gain) on financial assets and 
  liabilities at fair value through profit and loss  119,222  (696,399) 
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 
 Interest and other income  765,301  439,641  elbaviecer

 385,525  -  rekorb morf euD 
 )540,23(  428,33  stessa rehtO 

 778,64  )637,95(  sesnepxe deurcca dna elbayap stnuoccA 

Net cash provided by operating activities  151,132,11  038,661,21  
       

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from subscriptions of Cla 37,2  serahS A ss 0,958  7,449,322 

 )972,558,71(  )547,534,51(  serahS A ssalC fo snoitpmeder no stnemyaP

Net cash used in financing activities  )759,504,01(  )787,407,21(  
       

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (537,957)  825,194 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  528,021  910,649  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  910,649 $ 260,804 $ 
       

Supplemental information 
 075,254,1 $ 929,758 $ deviecer tseretnI
 015,81 $ 657,02 $ deviecer sdnediviD
 255,5 $ 203,2 $ diap sexaT

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)
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1. Incorporation and principal activity 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC (the “Company”) was incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company and 
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on July 11, 2006. The 
Company registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on November 21, 2006. The address of its 
registered office is Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd., Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, George Town, 
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.   

The Company established BIAS Short Duration Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio (the “Fund”), a segregated 
portfolio, on December 15, 2006. The Fund commenced operations on December 29, 2006. 

At December 31, 2013, the Company has four segregated portfolios, namely, the Fund the BIAS Global Equities 
Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio, BIAS Global Balanced Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio, and the BIAS Global 
Dividend Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio. Additional Segregated Portfolios may be established by the 
Company in the future at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. As a matter of Cayman Islands law, the assets 
of one segregated portfolio will not be available to meet the liabilities of another. However, the Company is a single 
legal entity which may operate or have assets held on its behalf or be subject to claims in other jurisdictions which 
may not necessarily recognise such segregation. 

The Fund is a segregated portfolio and a separate individually managed pool of assets constituting, in effect, a 
separate fund with its own investment objective. The assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the Company or 
other segregated portfolios are not included in these financial statements. BIAS Asset Management Ltd. (the 
“Investment Manager”), a related party through common directors, acts as the Fund’s Investment Manager under the 
Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager has entered into an agreement to delegate its duties to 
Bermuda Investment Advisory Services Limited (the “Sub-Manager”). BIAS (Cayman) Limited and Comerica Bank 
(the “Custodians”) act as the Fund’s custodians, and Cayman National Fund Services (the “Administrator”) acts as 
the Fund’s administrator. 

Assets are identified as either general Company or Segregated Portfolio assets. Those attributable to a segregated 
portfolio comprise assets representing the total equity attributable to the segregated portfolio and other assets 
attributable to or held within that segregated portfolio. They are held separately from, and are not comingled with, 
assets of the other segregated portfolios noted above. The General Assets of the Company comprise a cash balance 
of $1, representing the amount received upon issuance of the Ordinary Shares (see Note 7). As at December 31, 2013 
and 2012, the general assets are not presented separately on the statement of financial position due to immateriality. 
No income or expense shave been attributed to the general assets to date. 

The objective of the Fund is to offer a vehicle for investing in high quality money market and short duration income 
producing instruments denominated in United States (“US”) dollars, which offer liquidity, low risk and attractive 
returns consistent with prudent investment management. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with prior year. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”). 

The financial statements are presented in United States (“US”) dollars, which is also the Fund’s functional 
currency, and not the local currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Fund’s Class A Shares are 
issued in US dollars, and assets and liabilities are denominated in US dollars. 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)
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(a) Basis of preparation (continued) 

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and do not 
distinguish between current and non-current items. All the Fund’s assets and liabilities are held for the purpose 
of being traded or are expected to be realised within one year. 

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with prior year 
except for the changes below and noted in Note 2(f). 

These financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities held at fair value 
through profit or loss. Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at 
amortised cost or redemption amount which is considered to approximate fair value due to the short-term nature 
of these assets and liabilities. 

The Fund has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any consequential 
amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2013: 

(i) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The nature and the effect of the changes are explained below. 

 (i) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

IFRS 10 builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in 
whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent company. 
The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where this is difficult to 
assess. The new standard does not have any material impact on the Fund’s financial position or 
performance. 

 (b) Investment income and expense 

Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date and is reported gross of withholding tax and the 
corresponding withholding tax is recognised as a tax expense. Bank interest income and expense is accounted 
for on the accrual basis.  

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss, using the 
effective interest method. 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities  

(i) Classification 
In accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, all investments are 
classified as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, under the sub-category of 
financial assets and liabilities held for trading. 

Financial  assets that are classified as loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents, interest and 
dividends receivable and other assets. Financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are 
carried at amortized cost and include accounts payable and accrued expenses and redemptions payable. 

(ii) Recognition/derecognition 
Purchases and sales of investments are initially recognised on the trade date – the date on which the Fund 
commits to purchase or sell the investment. Other financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the date 
they are originated. 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

(ii) Recognition/derecognition (continued) 
Investments and other financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
investments have expired or the Fund has transferred all risks and rewards of ownership. The Fund 
derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

Gains and losses on the disposal of financial assets and liabilities are computed on a first-in, first-out basis 
(“FIFO”) and are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise 
within net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Movements in unrealised gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement 
of comprehensive income within net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss. 

(iii) Measurement 
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus 
directly attributable transaction costs. ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the 
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Fund has access at that date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the statement of comprehensive 
income in the period in which they arise 

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost, less impairment losses, if 
any.

Financial liabilities arising from the Class A Shares issued by the Fund are carried at the redemption 
amount representing the shareholders’ right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets. 

(iv) Fair value measurement principles 
The Fund’s investments are valued on the Friday of each week and at month-end (the “valuation date”). In 
accordance with IRFS 13, the Fund has changed its valuation input for financial assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value effective January 1, 2012, based on a quoted price in an active market, to last traded 
prices in cases where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. Where the last traded price falls 
outside the bid-ask spread, the bid price is used for long securities and the ask price for securities held short. 
There were no financial instruments for which quotations were not readily available in active markets on a 
recognised public stock exchange during any of the periods presented. 

The fair value of fixed income securities are estimated using market price quotations (where observable). 

(v) Identification and measurement of impairment 
 A financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if there is 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition 
of the asset, and that loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be 
estimated reliably. 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

 (v) Identification and measurement of impairment (continued) 
Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
when incurred. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognised. When a subsequent event causes the 
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the statement of 
comprehensive income.  

(vi) Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when, and only when, the Fund has a legal right to offset the amounts and it intends either to settle 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are 
presented on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at fair through profit or loss and 
foreign exchange gains and losses. 

(d) Operating expenses 

The Fund is responsible for all normal operating expenses including audit fees, stamp and other duties and 
charges incurred on the acquisition and realisation of investments. All expenses are recognised in the statement 
of comprehensive income on the accruals basis. 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, money market investments, and balances held with the 
investment broker with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in their fair value. Money market funds are valued at the net asset value as provided 
by the managers of the underlying funds. 

(f) Share Capital 

The Fund classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. 

As at December 31, 2012, the Fund classified the Class A shares as financial liabilities. As at December 31, 
2013, the Fund changed the classification of the Class A shares to equity in accordance with IAS 32 - Financial 
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The comparative figures presented in the Financial Statements have 
been restated to reflect this reclassification (refer to Note 12 for impact on comparative figures presented). This 
reclassification had no impact on the equity or net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares of the Fund 
for the periods presented.   

Ordinary Shares are classified as share capital of the Company. The Class A Shares are the most subordinate 
class of financial instruments in the Fund.  The Class A Shares provide investors with the right to require 
redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the investor’s share in the Fund’s net assets at each weekly 
redemption date and also in the event of the Fund’s liquidation. 

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or redeem that 
instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as equity, if it meets all of the following conditions: 

it entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets in the event of the Fund’s liquidation; 

it is in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments; 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(f) Share Capital (continued) 

all financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of 
instruments have identical features; 

apart from the contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or redeem the instrument for cash or 
another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would require 
classification as a liability; and 

the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on the 
profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the recognised 
and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument. 

The Fund’s Class A Shares meet these conditions and are classified as equity. 

When Class A Shares recognised as equity are redeemed, the par value of the shares is presented as a deduction 
from net capital paid on shares.  Any premium or discount to par value is recognised as an adjustment to net 
capital paid on shares, or if insufficient to retained earnings. Redemptions payable are classified as financial 
liabilities and are measured at the present value of the redemption amounts.  

 (g) Foreign currency 

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US dollars are translated at exchange rates prevailing 
at the year-end date. Transactions in other currencies during the year are translated to US dollars at the rate 
prevailing at the date of the transaction. The resulting profits or losses are disclosed in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss as net foreign exchange 
loss, except for those arising on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised as 
a component of net realised loss on sale or change in net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss. 

(h) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Management does not believe that the 
estimates and assumptions have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(i) Forward contracts 

Forward contracts are recognised as unrealised gains and losses by marking to market on a daily basis to reflect 
the value of the contracts at the end of each day’s trading. Unrealised gains or losses on open forward contracts 
are calculated as the difference between the contract price at trade date and the contract’s applicable forward rate 
at valuation date. Forward contracts settled during the year are recorded in net realised loss on sale of financial 
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the statement of comprehensive income. The Fund 
had no open forward contracts as at December 31, 2013 (2012: one). 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(j) New accounting pronouncements 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods 
beginning after January 1, 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of 
these are expected to have a significant effect on the measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements of the Fund. However, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, will change the classification of financial 
assets.

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments  
IFRS 9 specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets and liabilities, including some 
hybrid contracts. IFRS 9 improves and simplifies the approach for classification and measurement of financial 
assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39. IFRS 9 applies a consistent approach to classifying financial 
assets and replaces the numerous categories of financial assets in IAS 39, each of which had its own 
classification criteria. The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 is 1 January 2018 with early application 
permitted. Based on the initial assessment, the standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Fund. 

Amendment to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation 

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 by explaining when an entity currently has a 
legally enforceable right to set-off and when gross settlement is considered to be equivalent to net settlement. 
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and interim periods 
within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. Based on the initial assessment, the standard is not 
expected to have a material impact on the Fund.

3. Cash and cash equivalents 
 2102  3102    

 186,84 $ - $ rekorb yb dleh hsaC 
 833,798  260,804  rekorb ta dleh sdnuf tekram yenoM 

 910,649 $ 260,804 $ latoT 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  

The following tables summarise financial assets and liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss as at 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related changes as presented in the statements of financial position and 
comprehensive income: 

 eulav riaF  tsoC  3102 

 Financial assets held for trading: 
 510,597,6 $ 405,097,6 $ sdnob tnemnrevoG  
 115,478,6  551,778,6  sdnob etaroproC  

 625,966,31 $ 956,766,31 $ latoT 
       

 eulav riaF  tsoC  2102 

 Financial assets held for trading: 
 188,484 $ 365,105 $ seitiruces ytiuqE  
 979,721,41  943,420,41  sdnob tnemnrevoG  
 923,282,11  885,222,11  sdnob etaroproC  

 981,598,52 $ 005,847,52 $ latoT 
       

 Financial liabilities held for trading: 
 )106,52( $    – $ stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF  

 2102  3102    

Net realised loss on sale of financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss: 

 )317,156( $ )892,901( $ sdnob tnemnrevog dna etaroproC 
 -  )884,15(  seitiruces ytiuqE
 )756,761(  370,69  stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF  

)317,46( $ latoT $ (819,370) 
       

Change in net unrealised gain (loss) on financial assets 
 at fair value through profit or loss: 

 )359,01( $ 186,61 $ seitiruces ytiuqE 
 485,572  )911,99(  sdnob tnemnrevoG 
 )106,52(  106,52  stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF 

 963,754  )583,26(  sdnob etaroproC 

)222,911( $ *latoT $ 696,399 
       

 *Included in this amount are transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2013 of $8,038. 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

The net realised loss on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss represents the 
difference between the acquisition price, or the carrying amount of a financial instrument and its sale/settlement 
price. The change in net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
represents the difference between the acquisition price, or carrying amount of the respective financial instrument at 
the beginning of the period, and its carrying amount at the end of the period.  

Per the Security Agreement dated November 29, 2011 and amended on February 20, 2012 with Comerica Bank, the 
Fund’s aggregate exposure on open forward foreign currency contracts may not exceed $10,000,000. The collateral 
for forward foreign currency contracts positions is all cash and financial assets held by the Fund in its Comerica 
Bank accounts. There were no open forward foreign currency contract position was held by the Fund as at December 
31, 2013 (2012: one). 

5. Fair value of financial instruments 

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in measuring fair value: 

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in measuring fair value: 

Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Fund has the ability to access at the valuation date. An active market for the asset or liability is a 
market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to 
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly. Fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation 
methodologies. Level 2 inputs include the following: 

a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.  

b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, that is, 
markets in which there are few transactions for the asset or liability, the prices are not current, or 
price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers, or in which little 
information is released publicly. 

c) Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g. interest rate and 
yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss 
severities, credit risks and default rates). 

d) Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation 
or other means. 
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5. Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs reflect the Fund’s own 
assumptions about how market participants would be expected to value the asset or liability. 
Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances, other 
than market data obtained from sources independent of the Fund and might include the Fund’s own 
data. 

An investment is always categorised as Level 1, 2 or 3 in its entirety. In certain cases, the fair value 
measurement for an investment may use a number of different inputs that fall into different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the 
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The assessment of the 
significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and is specific to the 
investment. 

The following table analyses, under the fair value hierarchy, the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured at 
fair value at December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL  3102

Money market funds $ 408,062 $ –  $ –  $ 408,062 

         
Government bonds: 

Canada  557,915  –   –   557,915 
United States  6,237,100  –   –   6,237,100 

Total government bonds  6,795,015  –   –   6,795,015 
         

Corporate bonds: 
United Kingdom  –   1,345,560  –   1,345,560 
United States  –   4,750,309  –   4,750,309 
Netherlands  –   778,643  –   778,643 

 Total corporate bonds  –   6,874,511  –   6,874,511 
          

 885,770,41 $  – $ 115,478,6 $ 770,302,7 $ latoT
         

 There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
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5. Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 

 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL  2102
Assets 
Money market funds $ 897,338 $ –  $ –  $ 897,338 
Equity securities: 

United Kingdom  246,780  –   –   246,780 
United States  238,101  –   –   238,101 

Total equity securities  484,881  –   –   484,881 
         

Government bonds: 
Canada  2,730,562  –   –   2,730,562 
United States  11,397,417  –   –   11,397,417 

Total government bonds  14,127,979  –   –   14,127,979 
         

Corporate bonds: 
United Kingdom  –   1,696,934  –   1,696,934 
Norway  –   740,627  –   740,627 
United States  –   8,844,768  –   8,844,768 

Total corporate bonds  –   11,282,329  –   11,282,329 
         

 725,297,62 $  – $ 923,282,11 $ 891,015,51 $ latoT
         

Liabilities 
Foreign Exchange Contracts $ –  $ 25,601 $ –  $ 25,601 

 The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s assets and liabilities (by class) not measured 
at fair value at December 31, 2013 but for which fair value is disclosed. 

         
 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL  

Assets
Interest and other income 

 607,711 $  – $ 607,711 $  – $ elbaviecer 
Subscriptions receivable  –   150  –   150 

 658,711 $  – $ 658,711 $  – $ latoT
          

Liabilities 

Account payable and 
 accrued expenses $ –  $ 27,624 $ –  $ 27,624 
Redemptions payable  –   29  –   29 

 356,72 $  – $ 356,72 $  – $ latoT
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5. Fair value of financial instruments (continued) 

The assets and liabilities in the table above are carried at amortised cost; their carrying values are a reasonable 
approximation of fair value. 

Interest and other income receivable and subscriptions receivable classified in Level 2 include the contracted 
amounts for settlement of trades and other obligations due to the Fund. Accounts payable and accrued expenses and 
redemptions payable represent the contractual amounts and obligations due by the Fund for settlement of trades and 
expenses. 

6. Fees and expenses 

Management fees 
The Investment Manager of the Fund is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Fund, including managing 
the investment portfolio, providing investment analysis and making decisions relating to the investment of assets of 
the Fund. The Fund is responsible for the payment of a management fee to the Investment Manager for its services to 
the Fund equal to 0.15% per annum (0.30% prior to October 1, 2013) of the net asset value (“NAV”) of the Fund, 
calculated weekly and payable monthly in arrears. During the year ended December 31, 2013, management fees 
totalled $57,590 (2012: $157,906). As at December 31, 2013 management fees payable totalled $1,830 (2012: 
$10,396) and were included within accounts payable and accrued expenses on the statement of financial position. 
The Investment Manager compensates the Sub-Manager for performing its delegated duties. 

Administration fees 
The Administrator is entitled to receive fees amounting to 0.10% per annum based on the weekly NAV of the Fund, 
and subject to an annual minimum fee of $24,000. The new fee minimum became effective October 1, 2013. The 
administration fee is calculated weekly and is payable monthly in arrears. Administration fees for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 totalled $28,493 (2012: $37,444). 

The Administrator and the Investment Manager are reimbursed by the Fund for other fees and expenses that are 
identifiable with the Fund. 

Custody fees 
BIAS (Cayman) Limited no longer receives a custody fee. Prior to October 1, 2013 BIAS (Cayman) Limited received fees 
amounting to 0.05% per annum based on the average weekly NAV of the Fund. The custody fee was calculated 
weekly and payable monthly in arrears.  

Directors’ fees 
Each Director who is not an officer or employee of the Investment Manager or Sub-Manager receives a flat annual 
fee for serving in such capacity. The fee will be in accordance with reasonable and customary Directors’ fees. The 
Directors are entitled to reimbursement from the Fund for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them on 
behalf of the Fund. 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
SHORT DURATION INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)

23



7. Share capital 

The Company has an authorised share capital as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 of $50,001 divided into 100 
Ordinary Shares of $0.01 par value each and 5,000,000 non-voting, Redeemable Participating Shares of $0.01 par 
value each divided upon issue into Classes for each of the segregated portfolio funds. The Ordinary Shares of the 
Company are owned by the Investment Manager, and are the only shares of the Company with voting rights. The 
Company has authorised the issuance of up to 1,000,000 Class A Shares in the Fund. 

The issued share capital of the Company and Fund is as follows: 

 2102 3102  
 eulaV raP rebmuN  

(US$) 
Number Par Value 

(US$) 
      
     :diap ylluf dna deussI

Company 
Ordinary Shares 100 1 100 1

      
Fund
Class A Shares 

Balance at beginning of year 
Issued during the year 
Redeemed during the year 

241,042 
24,395 

(138,095) 

2,411 
244 

(1,381) 

333,677 
66,368 

(159,003) 

3,337 
664 

(1,590) 
 114,2 240,142 472,1 243,721 raey fo dne ta ecnalaB

Each Class A Share represents a beneficial interest in the Fund ranking equally in all distributions when and as 
declared payable. An unlimited number of the Fund’s shares may be issued which are redeemable each Monday and 
at such other times as the Directors may determine in their discretion at the shareholders’ option at the then current 
NAV per share, in accordance with the terms of the Information Memorandum. 

Notwithstanding the redeemable shareholders’ rights to redemptions above, the Fund has the right, as set out in its 
Information Memorandum, to impose a redemption gate limit of 5% of the Class A Shares of the Fund or $100,000 
in any redemption period in order to manage redemption levels and maintain the strength of the Fund’s capital base. 

In addition, no sales will be permitted within the first 90 days from initial purchase and a redemption fee of 2% will 
be assessed on Class A Shares redeemed within 12 months after their date of purchase and 1% on Class A Shares 
redeemed beyond 12 months, subject to a minimum fee of $25 per redemption request. The redemption fee will be 
shared equally between the Investment Manager and the Fund, and may be waived at the discretion of the Directors. 

The holders of the Ordinary Shares have a right to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any general 
meeting of the Company. The Ordinary Shares are not entitled to dividends nor do they participate in the profits of 
neither the Company nor the Fund. On a liquidation of the Company, the General Assets of the Company, being the 
assets of the Company which are not assets of the Segregated Portfolios, shall be available for distribution to the 
holders of the Ordinary Shares pro rata according to the number of Ordinary Shares held by them. The Ordinary 
Shares are held by the Investment Manager. 

The holders of the Class A Shares are not entitled to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any general 
meeting of the Company. Holders of the Class A Shares are entitled to receive dividends and participate in the 
profits of the Fund. On a liquidation of the Fund, the holders of the Class A Shares have a right to participate in the 
surplus assets of the Fund after the payment of all creditors.  
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8. Income Taxes 

The Cayman Islands at present impose no taxes on profit, income, capital gains or appreciation in value of the Fund. 
In the event that such taxes are levied, the Fund has received an undertaking from the Governor-in-Cabinet of 
Cayman Islands exempting it from all such taxes until July 25, 2026. As such, no provision for such taxes is included 
in the accompanying financial statements. 

The Fund may, however, be subject to foreign withholding tax and capital gains tax in certain jurisdictions in respect 
of income derived from its investments. 

9. Financial instruments and associated risks 

The Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks in pursuing its stated investment objective and policy. These risks 
are defined in IFRS 7 as including market risk (which in turn includes price, interest rate and currency risk), liquidity 
risk and credit risk. The Fund takes exposure to certain of these risks to generate investment returns on its portfolio, 
although these risks can also potentially result in a reduction in the Fund’s net assets. The Investment Manager will 
use its best endeavours to minimise the potential adverse effects of these risks on the Fund’s performance where it 
can do so while still managing the investments of the Fund in a way that is consistent with the Fund’s investment 
objective and policy. 

The risks, and the measures adopted by the Fund for managing these risks, are detailed below. 

(a) Price risk 

Market price risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or its future cash flows will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and 
credit spreads.  

The Fund’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of fixed income securities, the values of 
which are determined by market forces and there is accordingly a risk that market prices can change in a way 
that is adverse to the Fund’s performance. An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in the prices of fixed 
income securities and equity securities as at the reporting date would have increased or decreased net assets by 
$136,695 (2012: $258,952). 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s positions on a daily basis 
and reports regularly to the Board of Directors. The Board then reviews the information on the Fund’s overall 
market exposures provided by the Investment Manager at its periodic meetings. 

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the overall market exposures and concentration of risk are limited to the 
amounts presented in the statement of financial position. 

(b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates.  

The Fund’s cash and cash equivalents and certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are interest 
bearing instruments. The Fund’s other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. 
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

The Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk is detailed in the table below: 

   tseretni-noN  tseretnI   
 latoT  gniraeb  gniraeb  3102

Cash and cash equivalents $ 408,062 $ –    $ 408,062 
Financial assets at fair value through 

 625,966,31     –  625,966,31  ssol dna tiforp 
 471,321  471,321     –  stessa rehtO
 )92(  )92(     –  elbayaP snoitpmedeR

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  –     (27,624)  (27,624) 

901,371,41 $ 125,59 $ 885,770,41 $ latoT
       

   tseretni-noN  tseretnI   
 latoT  gniraeb  gniraeb  2102 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 946,019 $ –    $ 946,019 
Financial assets at fair value through 

 981,598,52  188,484  803,014,52  ssol dna tiforp        
 239,303  239,303     –  stessa rehtO
 )440,5(  )440,5(     –  elbayaP snoitpmedeR

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  –     (87,360)  (87,360) 

 531,720,72 $ 808,076 $ 723,653,62 $ latoT
        

An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have increased or 
decreased net assets by $243,542 (2011: $519,220). 

A summary of the Fund’s fixed income holdings analyzed by maturity date is as follows: 

 latoT + raey 1 shtnom 21-3 shtnom 3-0 3102

Government bonds $ –    $ –    $ 6,795,015 $ 6,795,015 
Corporate bonds  1,256,735  –     5,617,776  6,874,511 
 

 625,966,31 $ 197,214,21 $    – $ 537,652,1 $ latoT
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 (b) Interest rate risk (continued)

 latoT + raey 1 shtnom 21-3 shtnom 3-0 2102

Government bonds $ –    $ –    $ 14,127,979 $ 14,127,979 
Corporate bonds  500,075  2,669,122  8,113,132  11,282,329 

 803,014,52 $ 111,142,22 $ 221,966,2 $ 570,005 $ latoT
         

(c) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Fund invests in financial instruments and enters into transactions that are denominated in currencies other 
than its functional currency. The Fund is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities 
denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. 

The Fund’s Investment Manager and the Sub-Manager meet on a bi-weekly basis in order to manage all relevant 
risks to the Fund’s investments, including currency risk. 

The fair values of the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency and securities denominated in foreign currencies 
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

 2102  3102    

 852,459,1 $   – $ ralloD naidanaC
 462,357    –  renorK naigewroN

 225,707,2 $  $  
     –   

The Fund’s net assets would increase or decrease by $Nil (2012: $27,075) if the US dollar weakened or 
strengthened, respectively, by 100 basis points against the other currencies with all other variables remaining 
constant.

(d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Fund’s financial assets are greater than the financial liabilities and assets 
held are liquid in nature. All liabilities are expected to mature within twelve months of the reporting date. As 
such, the Fund’s management does not anticipate any material losses as a result of liquidity risk. 

 Less than  One to three 
 latoT  shtnom  htnom eno  3102

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,830 $ 23,794 $ 27,624 
 92     –  92  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 356,72 $ 497,32 $ 958,3 $ seitilibail latoT
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 (d) Liquidity risk (continued) 

 eerht ot enO  naht sseL  
 latoT  shtnom  htnom eno  2102

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 7,125 $ 80,235 $ 87,360 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss –     25,601  25,601 

 440,5     –  440,5  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 500,811 $ 638,501 $ 961,21 $ seitilibail latoT
           

As described in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Fund’s Class A shares are redeemable at the 
shareholder’s option on a weekly basis, and therefore the Fund is potentially exposed to weekly redemptions by 
its shareholders.  

(e) Credit risk 

Credit risk is defined as the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the to  
the Fund by failing to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.  

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on forward foreign 
exchange contracts is limited to the notional contract values of those positions. The credit risk exposure is 
represented by the value of those contracts in an unrealised gain position. At December 31, 2013, there were no 
open forward contracts. (2012: one open contract). The following table sets out the fair values and the notional 
amount of derivative assets and liabilities held by the Fund as at the reporting date: 

 lanoitoN eulaV riaF 3102

No positions open 

2012 

 )741,502,2( $ )106,52( $ stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are held with Comerica Bank, which is rated “A2” (2012: “A2”) 
based on rating agency Moody’s ratings. Management regularly monitors the institution’s credit risk and does 
not anticipate any significant losses from this concentration. Furthermore, the Fund only invests in investment 
grade fixed-income securities. 

The Fund’s maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date is $14,077,588 (2012: $26,356,327) which is the 
sum of the cash and cash equivalents and fixed income securities as reported in the statment of financial 
positition. 
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

(f) Regulatory environment risk 

A changing regulatory environment, including, but not limited to, changes in relevant tax laws, securities laws, 
bankruptcy laws or accounting standards, may make the business of the Fund less profitable or unprofitable. The 
ability of the Fund to carry on business from the Cayman Islands or as a Cayman Islands Fund will depend upon 
its initial and continuing compliance with the relevant provisions of Cayman Islands law and, in particular, the 
Mutual Funds Law. Management regularly monitors the institution’s regulatory environment risk and does not 
anticipate any significant changes relevant to the Fund. 

(g) Dependence on the Investment Manager risk 

The Investment Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the Fund. The success of the Fund depends 
upon the ability of the Investment Manager to develop and implement investment strategies that achieve the 
Fund’s investment objectives. The Investment Manager monitors the credit rating of debt securities on a 
continuous basis and actively reviews its investments to achieve profitable results. 

10. Capital risk management 

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets of the Fund. The amount of net assets can change 
significantly on a weekly basis as the Fund is subject to weekly subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of the 
Directors. The Fund’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide returns for holders of Class A Shares and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain 
a strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund. The Fund’s policies with 
respect to managing its capital risk are discussed in Note 7 above. 

The Board of Directors and Investment Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets of the Fund. 

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

11. Related party transactions 

As at December 31, 2013, the Directors of the Fund held 1,523 (2012: 6,138) Class A Shares in the Fund. As at   
December 31, 2013, persons or entities related to the Directors, the Investment Manager, or the Sub-Manager held 
11.24% (2012: 8.6%) of the Class A Shares in the Fund. 

BIAS (Cayman) Limited earns trade commission revenue based on trades executed within the Fund’s normal course of 
business. Commissions are calculated by BIAS (Cayman) Limited based on gross trade amount and security type. This is 
recorded as part of net realized gain or loss on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss or within change in net unrealized gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities through profit or loss within the 
statement of comprehensive income.  

BIAS (Cayman) Limited and the Sub-Manager are related to the Fund by virtue of common control. 
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12.  Prior period restatement  

As discussed in Note 2(f), the Class A Shares of the Fund were presented as financial liabilities as at and for the year 
ended December 31, 2012. The Class A Shares have been classified as equity in accordance with IFRS and the 
following corrections have been made to the comparative figures presented in the Financial Statements: 

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares of $27,027,135 as at December 31, 2012 has been 
disaggregated into Net capital paid in on shares of capital stock and Retained earnings as presented in the 
comparative figures on the statement of financial position for the period ended December 31, 2013. There has 
been no impact on the value of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares or total equity as a result 
of this reclassification for the periods presented. 

The statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares has been reclassified to be 
presented as a statement of changes in equity.  

13. Subsequent events 

From January 1, 2014 through June 24, 2014 the Fund received subscriptions of $1,122,493 and paid redemptions of 
$3,377,157. 
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Robert R. Pires
Chairman
BIAS Global Portfolios SPC
BIAS Short Duration Income Fund  – US$ Segregated Portfolio
August 4, 2014

INVESTMENT POLICY
The Segregated Portfolio (“the Fund”) holds a portfolio of global equities or limited partnership interests 
together with money market instruments, corporate bonds and Eurobonds of issuers throughout the 
world, government bonds of countries that are members of the Organisation for Economic Cooperation 
and Development (“OECD”) and other income producing securities. 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
We are pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Fund for the year ended 
December 31, 2013.  The net asset value per share of the Fund increased from $106.23 as at 31st 
December 2012 to $118.36 as at 31st December 2013. This increase in value represents a total return 
after fees for the Fund of 11.42% for the 2013 calendar year. The total assets of the Fund declined slightly 
from $38.9m to $37.9m over the calendar year ending December 31, 2013.

ANNUAL REVIEW
Over the course of the year, the Global Balanced Fund was overweight equities relative to benchmark.   
This allocation was driven by the relative value between the two asset classes as equities remained 
inexpensive relative to fixed income securities. We maintained a slightly shorter duration with the fixed 
income component to guard against bond price declines.  We hold an overweight to corporate bonds 
versus Treasuries, as corporate balance sheets are in far better shape than those of OECD countries.  
Regarding our equity positioning, expectations of improving global economic performance in the future 
drove the gain in equity prices in the First Quarter 2013.  During the Second Quarter global equity 
markets retreated but recovered all losses in the Third Quarter. Importantly, solid equity gains continued 
into year-end as economic growth in developed markets accelerated.  
 
OUTLOOK
As we begin 2014, we believe the portfolio is well positioned, and remain overweight equities and under-
weight bonds.  With respect to our bond holdings, our maturities are slightly shorter than our benchmark 
as we position defensively in the face of the reduction in Fed bond buying. We believe that the Fed’s 
stated goal of keeping rates low until a sustainable improvement is visible will result in an accelerating 
slowing of asset purchases later in 2014 and may cause yields to rise.  We are overweight equities as the 
return potential of stocks exceeds that of bonds. Corporate earnings and margins should pick up as 
economic growth in the United States, UK, Japan, and Europe drives increased hiring and business 
spending.  Tilting the Fund more toward growth stocks offers the better opportunity for capital apprecia-
tion. Regionally, the portfolio remains over weighted to the United States and underweight Europe and 
Asia.
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Global Balanced Fund US$

Current Strategy Allocation Risk Rating

Cash 2%
Fixed Income 28.2%
Equities 69.8%

Invests in a mixture of money market, fixed income, and equity
securities with the objective of providing outperformance through
strategic and tactical asset class shifts. A top-down macroeco-
nomic approach is employed with weightings determined by the
expected risks and returns within each asset class.  

Suitable for conservative to moderate investors who seek
medium- to long-term real capital appreciation while minimizing
risk through asset class diversification.

low high

Management Commentary
In the Fourth Quarter 2013, the BIAS Balanced Fund was up
5.45 percent against the benchmark which was up 4.69 per-
cent. Asset allocation contributed to outperformance as equities
were overweight versus bonds. In bonds, the Fund gained from
shorter than benchmark duration and holdings in corporates. In
equity, gains were led by exposure to the United States and
Europe as investors exulted in improving economic data. The
overweight exposure in Mexico added to positive returns after
reforms in the country gained traction. The equity portion sector
allocation helped boost returns as Information Technology,
Industrial, and Healthcare were the best performing sectors. The
underweight to Utilities, Consumer Staples, and Energy also
added to performance as those sectors ended the period in the
bottom half of the returns ladder.

Fund Information

Performance

Morningstar Rating ™ 
of as at 31/12/2013

As of December 31, 2013

Key Statistics

For more information on any of our funds, contact your investment advisor or download a prospectus, which contains important information about a fund’s investment goals, sales charges,
expenses and risks. Please read the prospectus carefully before investing.

www.biasglobalportfolios.com

Bond Key Statistics

Top Holdings

* 60% S&P Global 1200 Index/ 20% Citigroup 1-3 Yr Treas. Index/
20% Citigroup 3-7 Yr Treas. Index

** Prior to April 1, 2012 benchmark was FTSE World Equity Index.

Inception Date December 29, 2006

Base Currency USD

Benchmark Blended Composite* **

NAV per share $118.36

Subscriptions/Redemption Weekly

Management Fee 1.25%

Number of Holdings 76

AUM $37,965,305.38

Standard Deviation 7.07

Sharpe Ratio 1.33

Performance Q4/13 1-Year 2-Year
(Annualized)

3-Year
(Annualized)

Since Incept.
(Annualized)

Balanced Fund 5.45% 11.42% 8.20% 3.73% 2.43%

Benchmark* ** 4.69% 15.33% 13.33% 7.71% 4.28%

Modified Duration 2.63 years

Average Credit AA

Gross YTW 1.15%

Gross Current Yield 
(Projected annual income/MV of bonds)

3.88%

Vanguard European Equity Index 5.36%

Vanguard Global Enhanced Equity Fund 4.76%

iShares S&P Glbl Industrials Index Fund 3.49%

iShares MSCI United Kingdom 3.15%

iShares MSCI Japan Index Fund 2.56%

33



KPMG
P.O. Box 493 
Century Yard, Cricket Square 
Grand Cayman  KY1-1106 
CAYMAN ISLANDS 

KPMG, a Cayman Islands partnership and a member �rm of the 
KPMG network of independent member �rms a�liated with KPMG 
International, a Swiss cooperative. 

Telephone             +1 345 949 4800 
Fax                           +1 345 949 7164 
Internet     www.kpmg.ky 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of:
BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC – BIAS Global Balanced Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BIAS Global Balanced Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio 
(the “Fund”), which comprise the statement of financial position, as at December 31, 2013, the statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the Fund’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 
December 31, 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

June 24, 2014 
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 2102  3102  etoN   

Assets 
 166,018 $ 768,947 $ 5 ,3 stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4, 5, 9  37,159,436  37,912,010 
Interest and dividends recei  379,981  608,121   elbav

 547,21  823,5   stessa rehtO
 947  -   elbaviecer snoitpircsbuS

 831,629,83  734,630,83   stessa latoT 
        

Equity
Net capital paid in on shares of capital stock 7 $ 31,069,488 $ 35,870,647 

 936,688,2  818,598,6   sgninrae deniateR
       

 682,757,83 $ 603,569,73 $  )stessa ten( ytiuqe latoT
       

   
Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6  70,978  88,882 

 520,12  351   elbayap snoitpmedeR
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4, 5, 9  -  58,945 

 258,861  131,17   seitilibail latoT 
        

Total equity and liabilities  831,629,83    $ 734,630,83  $  
        

 958,463  477,023  7 gnidnatstuo serahS A ssalC
        

Net asset value per share  32.601 $ 63.811 $  
        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Authorised for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on June 24, 2014: 

ROBERT R. PIRES  NIVLEM KRAM 
 _________________________  _________________________

 rotceriD   rotceriD
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 2102  3102  etoN   

Investment income 
 402,402 $ 201,361 $  emocni tseretnI
 785,137  872,845   emocni rehto dna sdnediviD

Net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets  
 and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4   2,300,404  (39,691) 
Change in net unrealised gain on financial assets 
 and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4, 11  1,799,395  2,022,104 

 )736,44(  )349,85(   ssol egnahcxe ngierof teN

 765,378,2  632,257,4   emocni tnemtsevni latoT 
        

Expenses 
 )504,615(  )429,564(  6 seef tnemeganaM
 )037,551(  )570,831(   esnepxe xat gnidlohhtiW
 )726,48(  )165,47(  6 seef noitartsinimda dna ydotsuC
 )155,26(  )794,95(   sesnepxe lareneg rehtO
 )766,6(  )000,5(  6 seef ’srotceriD

 )052,076(  )289,406(   sesnepxe latoT 
        

Income for the year  785,740,2 $ 971,900,4 $  
        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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   Total equity 
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 38,812,646 

    
Income for the year  2,047,587 

    
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

 814,823,6  serahS A ssalC fo eussI
 )563,134,8(  serahS A ssalC fo noitpmedeR

 (2,102,947) 

Balance as at December  $ 2102 ,13 38,757,286

Income for the year  4,009,179 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 
Issue of Class A Shares  2,774,041 
Redemption of Class A Shares  (7,575,200) 

 (4,801,159) 

Balance as at December  $ 3102 ,13 37,965,306

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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 2102  3102     

Cash flows from operating activities 
 785,740,2 $ 971,900,4 $  raey eht rof emocnI

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash provided by 
 operating activities: 
 Net realised (gain)/loss on sale of financial assets and 
  liabilities at fair value through profit or loss   (2,353,405)  1,467 
 Change in net unrealised gain on financial assets and 
  liabilities at fair value through profit or loss   (1,954,734)  (2,022,104) 
 Amortization of bond premiums and discounts   269,398  373,955 

 )097,015,52(  )916,525,43(   stnemtsevni fo esahcruP 
 Proceeds from sale of invest 752,93   stnem ,989  27,428,833 
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 
 Interest and divi  )260,94(  761,86   elbaviecer sdned

 294  714,7   stessa rehtO 
 Accounts payable and accrued expenses   (17,904)  19,474   

Net cash provided by operating activities   4,760,488  2,289,852 
        

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from subscriptions of Class A Shares   2,774,790  6,327,669 
Payments on redemptions of Class A Shares   (7,596,072)  (8,410,654) 

Net cash used in financing activities  )589,280,2(  )282,128,4(   
        

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents   (60,794)  206,867 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year   810,661  603,794 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $ 749,867 $ 810,661 
        

Supplemental information 
 883,275 $ 553,574 $  deviecer tseretnI
 422,866 $ 535,255 $  deviecer sdnediviD
 037,551 $ 570,831 $  diap sexaT

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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1. Incorporation and principal activity 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC (the “Company”) was incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company and 
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on July 11, 
2006. The Company registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on November 21, 2006. 
The address of its registered office is Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd., Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 
1350, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.  

The Company established BIAS Global Balanced Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio (the “Fund”), a segregated 
portfolio of assets, on December 15, 2006. The Fund commenced operations on December 29, 2006.   

At December 31, 2013, the Company has four segregated portfolios, namely, the Fund, BIAS Global Equities 
Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio, BIAS Short Duration Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio, and the 
BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio (the “Segregated Portfolios”). Additional 
segregated portfolios may be established by the Company in the future at the sole discretion of the Board of 
Directors. As a matter of Cayman Islands law, the assets of one segregated portfolio will not be available to 
meet the liabilities of another. However, the Company is a single legal entity which may operate or have 
assets held on its behalf or be subject to claims in other jurisdictions which may not necessarily recognise 
such segregation. 

The Fund is a segregated portfolio and a separate individually managed pool of assets constituting, in effect, a 
separate fund with its own investment objective. The assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the 
Company or other segregated portfolios are not included in these financial statements. BIAS Asset 
Management Ltd. (the “Investment Manager”), a related party through common directors, acts as the Fund’s 
Investment Manager under the Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager has entered into 
an agreement to delegate its duties to Bermuda Investment Advisory Services Limited (the “Sub-Manager”). 
BIAS (Cayman) Limited and Comerica Bank (the “Custodians”) act as the Fund’s custodians, and Cayman 
National Fund Services (the “Administrator”) acts as the Fund’s administrator. 

Assets are identified as either general Company or Segregated Portfolio assets. Those attributable to a 
segregated portfolio comprise assets representing the total equity attributable to the segregated portfolio and 
other assets attributable to or held within that segregated portfolio. They are held separately from, and are not 
comingled with, assets of the other segregated portfolios noted above. The General Assets of the Company 
comprise a cash balance of $1, representing the amount received upon issuance of the Ordinary Shares (see 
Note 7). As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the general assets are not presented separately on the statement 
of financial position due to immateriality. No income or expense shave been attributed to the general assets to 
date. 

The objective of the Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth in the value of assets. The policy of the 
Investment Manager and Sub-Manager is to hold a portfolio of global equities or limited partnership interests 
together with money market instruments, corporate bonds and Eurobonds of issuers throughout the world, 
government bonds of countries that are members of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and 
Development and other income producing securities. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with prior year.

(a) Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”). 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) 

The financial statements are presented in United States (“US”) dollars, which is also the Fund’s 
functional currency, and not the local currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Fund’s 
Class A Shares are issued in US dollars, and assets and liabilities are denominated in US dollars. 

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and do 
not distinguish between current and non-current items. All the Fund’s assets and liabilities are held for the 
purpose of being traded or are expected to be realised within one year. 

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with 
prior year except for the changes below and noted in Note 2(f). 

These financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities held at fair 
value through profit or loss. Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities 
are stated at amortised cost or redemption amount which is considered to approximate fair value due to 
the short-term nature of these assets and liabilities. 

The Fund has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any 
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2013: 

(i) IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities; and
(ii) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The nature and the effect of the changes are explained below. 

(i) IFRS 12 Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities 
As a result of application of IFRS 12, the Fund has made disclosures about its involvement with 
unconsolidated structured entities (see Note 13). The disclosures related to its involvement with 
unconsolidated structured entities are not included in the comparative information. 

(ii) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
IFRS 10 builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor 
in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent 
company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where 
this is difficult to assess. The new standard does not have any material impact on the Fund’s financial 
position or performance. 

 (b) Investment income and expense 

Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date and is reported gross of withholding tax and the 
corresponding withholding tax is recognised as a tax expense. Bank interest income and expense is 
accounted for on the accrual basis.  

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss, 
using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument (or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of 
the financial instrument. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates future cash flows 
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses. Interest received 
or receivable is recognised in profit or loss as interest income. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Financial assets and liabilities  

(i) Classification  
In accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, all investments 
are classified as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, under the sub-
category of financial assets and liabilities held for trading. 

Financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents,  
interest and dividends receivable and other assets. Financial liabilities that are not at fair value 
through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost and include accounts payable and accrued 
expenses and redemptions payable. 

(ii) Recognition/derecognition 
Purchases and sales of investments are initially recognised on the trade date – the date on which 
the Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Other financial assets and liabilities are 
recognised on the date the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  

Investments and other financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from 
the investments have expired or the Fund has transferred all risks and rewards of ownership. The 
Fund derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Gains and losses on the disposal of financial assets and liabilities are computed on a first-in, first-
out basis (“FIFO”) and are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in 
which they arise within net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on financial assets and 
liabilities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within net unrealised 
gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.  

(iii) Measurement 
 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair 

value plus directly attributable transaction costs. ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which 
the Fund has access at that date.  

 Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the 
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  

 Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost, less impairment 
losses, if any. 

Financial liabilities arising from the Class A Shares issued by the Fund are carried at the 
redemption amount representing the shareholders’ right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets. 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
GLOBAL BALANCED FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)

41



2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

(iv)  Fair value measurement principles 

 The Fund’s investments are valued on the Friday of each week and at month-end (the “valuation 
date”). In accordance with IFRS 13, for those financial assets and liabilities, at fair value through 
profit and loss, which have a quoted price in an active market, the Fund uses the last traded price in 
cases where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. Where the last traded price falls 
outside the bid-ask spread, the bid price is used for long and the ask price for securities held short. 
There were no financial instruments for which quotations were not readily available in active 
markets on a recognised public stock exchange during any of the periods presented. 

 The fair value of fixed income securities are estimated using market price quotations (where 
observable).  

 The fair value of mutual funds and hedge funds are based on the net asset value of the Fund’s 
investment in those underlying funds as published or otherwise reported by the underlying 
administrators. The mutual funds and hedge funds in which the Fund invests will generally value 
securities on a national securities exchange or reported on a national market at the last reported 
sales price on the day of valuation. 

(v) Identification and measurement of impairment 

 A financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if 
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the 
initial recognition of the asset, and that loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows 
of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

 Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income when incurred. Interest on impaired assets continues to be 
recognised. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the 
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.  

(vi)  Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Fund has a legal right to offset the amounts and it 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at 
fair through profit or loss and foreign exchange gains and losses. 

(vii) Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities 

The Fund has concluded that unlisted closed-ended investment funds in which it invests, but that it 
does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entities because:  

the voting rights in the funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they 
relate to administrative tasks only; 

each fund's activities are restricted by its prospectus; and 

the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to 
investors. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Operating expenses 

The Fund is responsible for all normal operating expenses including audit fees, stamp and other duties 
and charges incurred on the acquisition and realisation of investments. All expenses are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income on the accruals basis. 

 (e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, money market investments, and balances held with the 
investment broker with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value. Money market funds are valued at the net asset value as 
provided by the managers of the underlying funds. 

 (f) Share capital 

The Fund classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

As at December 31, 2012, the Fund classified the Class A shares as financial liabilities. As at December 
31, 2013, the Fund changed the classification of the Class A shares to equity in accordance with IAS 32 - 
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The comparative figures presented in the Financial 
Statements have been restated to reflect this reclassification (refer to Note 13 for impact on comparative 
figures presented). This reclassification had no impact on the equity or net assets attributable to holders of 
redeemable shares of the Fund for the periods presented.   

Ordinary Shares are classified as share capital of the Company. The Class A Shares are the most 
subordinate class of financial instruments in the Fund.  The Class A Shares provide investors with the 
right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the investor’s share in the Fund’s net 
assets at each weekly redemption date and also in the event of the Fund’s liquidation. 

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or 
redeem that instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as equity, if it meets all of the 
following conditions: 

it entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets in the event of the Fund’s 
liquidation; 

it is in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments; 

all financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of 
instruments have identical features; 

apart from the contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or redeem the instrument for 
cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would 
require classification as a liability; and 

the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially 
on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of 
the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument. 

The Fund’s Class A Shares meet these conditions and are classified as equity. 

When Class A Shares recognised as equity are redeemed, the par value of the shares is presented as a 
deduction from net capital paid on shares.  Any premium or discount to par value is recognised as an 
adjustment to net capital paid on shares, or if insufficient to retained earnings. Redemptions payable are 
classified as financial liabilities and are measured at the present value of the redemption amounts.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 (g) Foreign currency 

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US dollars are translated at exchange rates 
prevailing at the year-end date. Transactions in other currencies during the year are translated to US 
dollars at the rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. The resulting profits or losses are disclosed in 
the statement of comprehensive income. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss as net foreign 
exchange loss, except for those arising on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which 
are recognised as a component of net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss or change in net unrealised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

(h) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. Management does not believe that the estimates and assumptions have a significant risk of 
causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year.

(i) Forward contracts 

Forward contracts are recognised as unrealised gains and losses by marking to market on a daily basis to 
reflect the value of the contracts at the end of each day’s trading. Unrealised gains or losses on open 
forward contracts are calculated as the difference between the contract price at trade date and the 
contract’s applicable forward rate at valuation date. Forward contracts settled during the year are recorded 
in net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on 
the statement of comprehensive income. The Fund had no open forward contracts as at December 31, 
2013 (2012: one). 

(j) New accounting pronouncements 
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods 
beginning after January 1, 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None 
of these are expected to have a significant effect on the measurement of the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements of the Fund. However, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, will change the classification 
of financial assets. 

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments  

IFRS 9 specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets and liabilities, including some 
hybrid contracts. IFRS 9 improves and simplifies the approach for classification and measurement of 
financial assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39. IFRS 9 applies a consistent approach to 
classifying financial assets and replaces the numerous categories of financial assets in IAS 39, each of

which had its own classification criteria. The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 is 1 January 2018 with 
early application permitted. Based on the initial assessment, the standard is not expected to have a 
material impact on the Fund. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 (j) New accounting pronouncements (continued) 

Amendment to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation 

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 by explaining when an entity currently 
has a legally enforceable right to set-off and when gross settlement is considered to be equivalent to net 
settlement. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and 
interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. Based on the initial assessment, 
the standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Fund. 

 3. Cash and cash equivalents 

 2102  3102     

 908,324 $ 958,1 $  rekorb ta hsaC 
 Money market funds held at broker   748,008  386,852 

 166,018 $ 768,947 $  latoT 
        

4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

The following tables summarise financial assets and liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss 
as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related changes as presented in the statements of financial position 
and comprehensive income: 

 eulav riaF  tsoC   3102 

 Financial assets held for trading: 
 605,677,1 $ 689,312,1 $  sdnuf lautuM  
 468,743  904,036    sdnuf egdeH  
 491,853,4  972,073,4   sdnob tnemnrevoG  
 872,962,6  543,162,6   sdnob etaroproC  
 495,704,42  751,941,12   seitiruces ytiuqE  

 634,951,73 $ 771,526,33 $  latoT 
        

 eulav riaF  tsoC   2102

 Financial assets held for trading: 
 962,453,1 $ 000,522,1 $  sdnuf lautuM  
 555,265  240,287    sdnuf egdeH  
 379,441,5  930,340,5   sdnob tnemnrevoG  
 442,488,8  991,406,8   sdnob etaroproC  
 969,569,12  952,916,02   seitiruces ytiuqE  

 010,219,73 $ 935,372,63 $  latoT 
        

Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign currency contracts  $ –    $ 58,945
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
 

 2102  3102     

 Net realized gain (loss) on sale of financial assets and  
  liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 

 Equity securities, mutual funds and hedge funds  $ 2,253,210 $ 47,755 
 Corporate and government bonds   100,196  (49,222) 
 Forward foreign currency contracts   (53,002)  (38,224) 

 )196,93( $ 404,003,2 $  latoT
        

Change in net unrealised gain on financial assets and 
 liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 

 035,514 $ 252,334 $  sdnuf lautuM 
 )682,021(  )950,36(   sdnuf egdeH 

 810,86  )910,411(   sdnob tnemnrevoG 
 845,051  )311,272(   sdnob etaroproC 

 Forward foreign currency contracts   58,945  (58,945) 
 932,765,1  727,119,1   seitiruces ytiuqE 

 401,220,2 $ 337,459,1 $  *latoT
        

*Included in this amount for the year ended December 31, 2013 are transaction costs of $155,340. 

The net realised gain (loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
represents the difference between the acquisition price, or the carrying amount of a financial instrument, and 
its sale/settlement price. The movement in net unrealised gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss represents the difference between the acquisition price, or carrying amount of the 
respective financial instrument at the beginning of the period, and its carrying amount at the end of the period.  

Per the Security Agreement dated November 29, 2011 and amended on February 20, 2012 with Comerica 
Bank, the Fund’s aggregate exposure on open forward foreign currency contracts may not exceed 
$10,000,000. The collateral for forward foreign currency contracts positions is all cash and financial assets 
held by the Fund in its Comerica Bank accounts. There were no open forward foreign currency contract 
position was held by the Fund as at December 31, 2013 (2012: one). 
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5. Fair values of financial instruments

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 
inputs used in measuring fair value: 

Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the Fund has the ability to access at the valuation date. An active market for the asset or liability 
is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and 
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. Fair value is determined through the use of models or other 
valuation methodologies. Level 2 inputs include the following: 

a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.  

b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, that 
is, markets in which there are few transactions for the asset or liability, the prices are not 
current, or price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers, or 
in which little information is released publicly. 

c) Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g. interest rate 
and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, 
loss severities, credit risks and default rates). 

d) Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means. 

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs reflect the Fund’s own 
assumptions about how market participants would be expected to value the asset or liability. 
Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances, 
other than market data obtained from sources independent of the Fund and might include the 
Fund’s own data. 

An investment is always categorised as Level 1, 2 or 3 in its entirety. In certain cases, the fair 
value measurement for an investment may use a number of different inputs that fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value 
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
The assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires 
judgment and is specific to the investment. 
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5. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The following table analyses, under the fair value hierarchy, the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value at December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL  3102

Assets 
Money market funds $ 748,008 $ –    $ –    $ 748,008 
Mutual and hedge funds  –     2,124,370  –     2,124,370 
Government bonds: 

Canada  533,253  –     –     533,253 
United States  3,824,941  –     –     3,824,941 

 Total government bonds  4,358,194  –     –     4,358,194 
         

Corporate bonds: 
United Kingdom  –     838,100  –     838,100 
Netherlands    453,546    453,546 
Norway  –     527,505  –     527,505 
United States  –     4,450,127  –     4,450,127 

 Total corporate bonds  –     6,269,278  –     6,269,278 
         

Equity securities: 
   United States  23,127,009  –     –     23,127,009 
   Canada  331,721  –     –     331,721 

 242,324     –     –  242,324  learsI   
   Switzerland  525,622  –     –     525,622 

     Total equity securities  24,407,594  –     –     24,407,594 
         

 444,709,73 $    – $ 846,393,8 $ 697,315,92 $ latoT
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5. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL  2102

Assets 
Money market funds $ 386,852 $ –    $ –    $ 386,852 
Mutual and hedge funds  –     1,916,824  –     1,916,824 
Government bonds: 

Canada  589,899  –     –     589,899 
United States  4,555,074  –     –     4,555,074 

 Total government bonds  5,144,973  –     –     5,144,973 
         

Corporate bonds: 
Australia  –     528,639  –     528,639 
Norway  –     185,155  –     185,155 
United States  –     8,170,450  –     8,170,450 

 Total corporate bonds  –     8,884,244  –     8,884,244 
         

Equity securities: 
   United States  16,434,829  –     –     16,434,829 
   United Kingdom  1,888,622  –     –     1,888,622 
   Canada  849,309  –     –     849,309 

 908,927     –     –  908,927  ylatI   
   Germany  596,936  –     –     596,936 
   Netherlands  558,259  –     –     558,259 
   Bermuda  402,009  –     –     402,009 

 096,672     –     –  096,672  lizarB   
   Switzerland  229,506  –     –     229,506 

    Total equity securities  21,965,969  –     –     21,965,969 
         

 268,892,83 $    – $ 860,108,01 $ 497,794,72 $ latoT
         

Liabilities 
Forward foreign  
   exchange contracts $ –    $ 58,945 $ –    $ 58,945 

 There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
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5. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s assets and liabilities (by class) not 
measured at fair value at December 31, 2013 but for which fair value is disclosed. 

 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL   

Assets
 958,1 $    – $    – $ 958,1 $  hsaC

Interest and dividends 
 receivable  –     121,806  –     121,806 

 566,321 $    – $ 608,121 $ 958,1 $ latoT
         

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and 
 accrued expenses $ –    $ 70,978 $ –    $ 70,978 
Redemptions payable  –     153  –     153 

 131,17 $    – $ 131,17 $    – $ latoT
         

The assets and liabilities in the table above are carried at amortised cost; their carrying values are a reasonable 
approximation of fair value. 

Interest and dividends receivable are classified in Level 2 include the contracted amounts for settlement of 
trades and other obligations due to the Fund. Accounts payable and accrued expenses and redemptions 
payable represent the contractual amounts and obligations due by the Fund for settlement of trades and 
expenses. 

6. Fees and expenses

Management fees 
The Investment Manager of the Fund is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Fund, including 
managing the investment portfolio, providing investment analysis and making decisions relating to the 
investment of assets of the Fund. The Fund is responsible for the payment of a management fee to the 
Investment Manager for its services to the Fund equal to 1.25% per annum of the net asset value (“NAV”) of 
the Fund, calculated weekly and payable monthly in arrears. During the year ended December 31, 2013, 
management fees totalled $465,924 (2012: $516,405). As at December 31, 2013, management fees payable 
totalled $39,636 (2012: $40,875) and were included within accounts payable and accrued expenses on the 
statement of financial position. The Investment Manager compensates the Sub-Manager for performing its 
delegated duties. 

Administration fees 
The Administrator is entitled to receive fees amounting to 0.10% per annum based on the weekly NAV of the 
Fund, and subject to an annual minimum fee of $30,000. The administration fee is calculated weekly and is 
payable monthly in arrears. Administration fees for the year ended December 31, 2013 totalled $37,281 
(2012: $43,313). 

The Administrator and the Investment Manager are reimbursed by the Fund for other fees and expenses that 
are identifiable with the Fund. 
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6. Fees and expenses (continued)

Custody fees 
BIAS (Cayman) Limited is entitled to receive fees amounting to 0.10% per annum based on the average weekly 
NAV of the Fund. The custody fee is calculated weekly and payable monthly.  

Directors’ fees 
Each Director who is not an officer or employee of the Investment Manager or Sub-Manager receives a flat 
annual fee for serving in such capacity. The fee will be in accordance with reasonable and customary 
Directors’ fees. The Directors are entitled to reimbursement from the Fund for all reasonable out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred by them on behalf of the Fund. 

7. Share capital  

The Company has an authorised share capital as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 of $50,001 divided into 100 
Ordinary Shares of $0.01 par value each and 5,000,000 non-voting, Redeemable Participating Shares of $0.01 
par value each divided upon issue into Classes for each of the segregated portfolio funds. The Ordinary Shares 
of the Company are owned by the Investment Manager, and are the only shares of the Company with voting 
rights. The Company has authorised the issuance of up to 1,000,000 Class A Shares in the Fund. 

The issued share capital of the Company and Fund is as follows: 

 2102 3102  
 eulaV raP rebmuN  

(US$) 
Number Par Value 

(US$) 
      
     :diap ylluf dna deussI

Company 
Ordinary Shares 100 1 100 1

      
Fund
Class A Shares 

Balance at beginning of year 
Issued during the year 
Redeemed during the year 

364,859 
24,899 

(68,984) 

3,649 
249 

(690) 

384,106 
60,509 

(79,756) 

3,841 
605 

(797) 
 946,3 958,463 802,3 477,023 raey fo dne ta ecnalaB

Each Class A Share represents a beneficial interest in the Fund ranking equally in all distributions when and 
as declared payable. An unlimited number of the Fund’s shares may be issued which are redeemable each 
Monday and at such other times as the Directors may determine in their discretion at the shareholders’ option 
at the then current NAV per share, in accordance with the terms of the Information Memorandum. 

Notwithstanding the redeemable shareholders’ rights to redemptions above, the Fund has the right, as set out 
in its Information Memorandum, to impose a redemption gate limit of 5% of the Class A Shares of the Fund 
or $100,000 in any redemption period in order to manage redemption levels and maintain the strength of the 
Fund’s capital base. 
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7. Share capital (continued) 

In addition, no sales will be permitted within the first 90 days from initial purchase and a redemption fee of 
2% will be assessed on Class A Shares redeemed within 12 months after their date of purchase and 1% on 
Class A Shares redeemed beyond 12 months, subject to a minimum fee of $25 per redemption request. The 
redemption fee will be shared equally between the Investment Manager and the Fund, and may be waived at 
the discretion of the Directors. 

The holders of the Ordinary Shares have a right to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any 
general meeting of the Company. The Ordinary Shares are not entitled to dividends nor do they participate in 
the profits of neither the Company nor the Fund. On a liquidation of the Company, the General Assets of the 
Company, being the assets of the Company which are not assets of the Segregated Portfolios, shall be 
available for distribution to the holders of the Ordinary Shares pro rata according to the number of Ordinary 
Shares held by them. The Ordinary Shares are held by the Investment Manager. 

The holders of the Class A Shares are not entitled to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any 
general meeting of the Company. Holders of the Class A Shares are entitled to receive dividends and 
participate in the profits of the Fund. On a liquidation of the Fund, the holders of the Class A Shares have a 
right to participate in the surplus assets of the Fund after the payment of all creditors.   

    
8. Income taxes 

The Cayman Islands at present impose no taxes on profit, income, capital gains or appreciation in value of the 
Fund. In the event that such taxes are levied, the Fund has received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Cabinet of Cayman Islands exempting it from all such taxes until July 25, 2026. As such, no provision for 
such taxes is included in the accompanying financial statements. 

The Fund may, however, be subject to foreign withholding tax and capital gains tax in certain jurisdictions in 
respect of income derived from its investments. 

9. Financial instruments and associated risks 

The Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks in pursuing its stated investment objective and policy. 
These risks are defined in IFRS 7 as including market risk (which in turn includes price, interest rate and 
currency risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Fund takes exposure to certain of these risks to generate 
investment returns on its portfolio, although these risks can also potentially result in a reduction in the Fund’s 
net assets. The Investment Manager will use its best endeavours to minimise the potential adverse effects of 
these risks on the Fund’s performance where it can do so while still managing the investments of the Fund in a 
way that is consistent with the Fund’s investment objective and policy.  
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

The risks, and the measures adopted by the Fund for managing these risks, are detailed below. 

(a) Price risk  

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or its future cash flows will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices 
and credit spreads.  

The Fund’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of fixed income securities, mutual 
funds, hedge funds and equity securities, the values of which are determined by market forces and there is 
accordingly a risk that market prices can change in a way that is adverse to the Fund’s performance. An 
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in the prices of fixed income securities, mutual funds, hedge 
funds and equity securities as at the reporting date would have increased or decreased net assets, 
respectively, by $371,594 (2012: $379,120). 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s positions on a daily 
basis and reports regularly to the Board of Directors. The Board then reviews the information on the 
Fund’s overall market exposures provided by the Investment Manager at its periodic meetings. 

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the overall market exposures and concentration of risk are limited to 
the amounts presented in the statement of financial position. 

 (b) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates.  

The Fund’s cash and cash equivalents and certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
interest bearing instruments. The Fund’s other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. 

The Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk is detailed in the table below: 

 tseretni-noN  tseretnI   
 latoT  gniraeb  gniraeb  3102

Cash and cash equivalents $ 749,867 $ –    $ 749,867 
Financial assets at fair value through 

 634,951,73  469,135,62  274,726,01  ssol ro tiforp   
Interest and dividends receivable  –     121,806  121,806 

 823,5  823,5     –  stessa rehtO
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  –     (70,978)  (70,978) 

 )351(  )351(     –  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 603,569,73 $ 769,785,62 $ 933,773,11 $ latoT
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

(b) Interest rate risk (continued) 

 tseretni-noN  tseretnI   
 latoT  gniraeb  gniraeb  2102

Cash and cash equivalents $ 810,661 $ –    $ 810,661 
Financial assets at fair value through 

 010,219,73  397,288,32  712,920,41  ssol ro tiforp   
Interest and dividends receivable  –     189,973  189,973 
Subscriptions receivable  –     749  749 

 547,21  547,21     –  stessa rehtO
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  –     (88,882)  (88,882) 

 )520,12(  )520,12(     –  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 682,757,83 $ 804,719,32 $ 878,938,41 $ latoT
        

An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have increased 
or decreased net assets, respectively, by $279,503 (2012: $418,070). 

A summary of the Fund’s fixed income holdings analyzed by maturity date is as follows: 

2013 0-3 months 3-12 months  1 year +  Total 

Government bonds $ –    $ 254,295 $ 4,103,899 $ 4,358,194 
Corporate bonds  453,546  1,064,522  4,751,210  6,269,278 

Total $ 453,546  1,318,817 $ 8,855,109 $ 10,627,472 
         

2012 0-3 months 3-12 months  1 year +  Total 

Government bonds $ –    $ –    $ 5,144,973 $ 5,144,973 
Corporate bonds  –     1,166,202  7,718,042  8,884,244 

Total $ –     1,166,202 $ 12,863,015 $ 14,029,217 
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 (c) Currency risk  

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 
to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Fund invests in financial instruments and enters into transactions that are denominated in currencies 
other than its functioanal currency. The Fund is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the 
securities denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. 

The Fund’s Investment Manager and the Sub-Manager meet on a bi-weekly basis in order to manage all 
relevant risks to the Fund’s investments, including currency risk. 

The fair values of the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency and securities denominated in foreign 
currencies for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

 2102  3102     

 556,825 $ 971 $  ralloD nailartsuA
 665,115,1  204,333   ralloD naidanaC
 348,030,1  -   oruE
 495,738  -   dnuoP hsitirB
 360,032  -   cnarF ssiwS
 551,581  -   renorK naigewroN

 678,323,4 $ 185,333 $    
        

The Fund’s net assets would increase or decrease by $3,336 (2012: $43,239) if the US dollar weakened or 
strengthened, respectively, by 100 basis points against the other currencies with all other variables 
remaining constant. 

(d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Fund’s financial assets are greater than the financial liabilities 
and the assets held are liquid in nature. All liabilities are expected to mature within twelve months of the 
reporting date. As such, the Fund’s management does not anticipate any material losses as a result of 
liquidity risk.  

 eerht ot enO  naht sseL   
 latoT  shtnom  htnom eno  3102

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ –    $ 70,978 $ 70,978 
 351     –  351  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 131,17 $ 879,07 $ 351 $ seitilibail latoT
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) 

 eerht ot enO  naht sseL   
 latoT  shtnom  htnom eno  2102

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ –    $ 88,882 $ 88,882 
Financial liabilities at fair value through  

 549,85  549,85     –  ssol ro tiforp   
 520,12     –  520,12  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 258,861 $ 728,741 $ 520,12 $ seitilibail latoT
           

            

As described in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Fund’s Class A shares are redeemable at the 
shareholder’s option on a weekly basis, and therefore the Fund is potentially exposed to weekly 
redemptions by its shareholders. 

(e) Credit risk 

Credit risk is defined as the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to 
the Fund by failing to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Fund.  

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on forward
foreign exchange contracts is limited to the notional contract values of those positions. The credit risk 
exposure is represented by the value of those contracts in an unrealised gain position. At December 31, 
2013, there are no open positions (2012: one open contract). The following table sets out the fair values 
and the notional amount of derivative assets and liabilities held by the Fund as at the reporting date: 

 lanoitoN eulaV riaF 3102

  nepo snoitisop oN

2012 

 )527,452,1( $ )549,85( $ stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are held with Comercia Bank, which is rated “A2” (2012: 
“A2”) based on rating agency Moody’s ratings. Management regularly monitors the institution’s credit 
risk and does not anticipate any significant losses from this concentration. Furthermore, the Fund only 
invests in investment grade fixed-income securities. 

The Fund’s maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date is $11,377,339 (2012: $14,839,878) 
which is the sum of the cash and cash equivalents and fixed income securities as reported in the statement 
of financial position. 
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

(f) Regulatory environment risk 

A changing regulatory environment, including, but not limited to, changes in relevant tax laws, securities 
laws, bankruptcy laws or accounting standards, may make the business of the Fund less profitable or 
unprofitable. The ability of the Fund to carry on business from the Cayman Islands or as a Cayman 
Islands Fund will depend upon its initial and continuing compliance with the relevant provisions of 
Cayman Islands law and, in particular, the Mutual Funds Law. Management regularly monitors the 
institution’s regulatory environment risk and does not anticipate any significant changes relevant to the 
Fund. 

 (g) Dependence on the Investment Manager risk 

The Investment Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the Fund. The success of the Fund 
depends upon the ability of the Investment Manager to develop and implement investment strategies that 
achieve the Fund’s investment objectives. The Investment Manager monitors the credit rating of debt 
securities on a continuous basis and actively reviews its investments to achieve profitable results. 

10. Capital risk management  

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets and  can change significantly on a weekly basis as the 
Fund is subject to weekly subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of the Directors. The Fund’s 
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to 
provide returns for holders of Class A shares and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong 
capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund. The Fund’s policies with 
respect to managing its capital risk are discussed in note 7 above. 

The Board of Directors and Investment Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets. 

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

11. Related party transactions 

As at December 31, 2013, persons or entities related to the Directors, the Investment Manager, or the Sub-
Manager held 7.81% (2012: 6.0%) of the Class A Shares in the Fund. 

BIAS (Cayman) Limited. earns trade commission revenue based on trades executed within the Fund’s normal 
course of business. Commissions are calculated by BIAS (Cayman) Limited based on gross trade amount and 
security type. This is recorded as part of net realized gain on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss or within change in net unrealized gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities through 
profit or loss within the statement of comprehensive income. BIAS (Cayman) Limited also earns custody fees as 
previously described in Note 6. 

BIAS (Cayman) Limited and the Sub-Manager are related to the Fund by virtue of common control. 
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12.  Investment in unconsolidated structured entities 

The table below describes the type of structured entities that the Fund does not consolidate but in which it 
holds an interest:

Type of structured entity Nature and purpose Interest held by the Fund

   elbameedeR ni tnemtsevnI  flaheb no stessa eganam oT dnuf tnemtsevnI
 .serahS noitapicitraP   dna srotsevni ytrap driht fo  

   rof seef tnemtsevni etareneg  
 .reganam tnemtsevni rieht  

   
  decnanif era selcihev esehT  

  fo eussi eht hguorht  
  noitapicitraP elbameedeR   

 .srotsevni ot serahS  
     

The table below sets out interests held by the Fund in unconsolidated structured entities as at December 31, 
2013 and 2012. The maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held. 

Carrying amount included in 
 riaf ta stessa laicnaniF   latoT     
 ssol ro tiforp hguorht eulav  stessA teN     

       3102
   

 Equity long: 
 Vanguard Global Enhanced Equity Fund                            80,854,772     1,776,506 
 Meridian Global Energy & Resources Fund Ltd  

Class A Series 1                              8,287,242                                213,311 
 Meridian Gold & Resources Fund Class A                              8,662,501                 134,552 

 2012 
Vanguard Global Enhanced Equity Fund                            42,010,269     1,354,268 

 Meridian Global Energy & Resources Fund Ltd  
Class A Series 1                                      9,233,114                                   241,924              

 Meridian Gold & Resources Fund Ltd Class A        14,960,090                                   320,631            

During the year, the Fund did not provide financial support to the unconsolidated structured entities and has 
no intention of providing financial or other support. The Fund can redeem shares in the above investment 
funds on a daily basis. 
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13.  Prior period restatement  

As discussed in Note 2(f), the Class A Shares of the Fund were presented as financial liabilities as at and for 
the year ended December 31, 2012. The Class A Shares have been classified as equity in accordance with 
IFRS and the following corrections have been made to the comparative figures presented in the Financial 
Statements: 

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares of $38,757,286 as at December 31, 2012 has been 
disaggregated into Net capital paid in on shares of capital stock and Retained earnings as presented in the 
comparative figures on the statement of financial position for the period ended December 31, 2013. There 
has been no impact on the value of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares or total equity 
as a result of this reclassification for the periods presented. 

The statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares has been reclassified to 
be presented as a statement of changes in equity.  

14. Subsequent events 

From January 1, 2014 through June 24, 2014 the Fund received subscriptions of $1,574,376 and paid 
redemptions of $3,565,592. 
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Robert R. Pires
Chairman
BIAS Global Portfolios SPC
BIAS Global Dividend Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio
August 4, 2014

INVESTMENT POLICY
Overall the fund employs a total return strategy but with an emphasis on generating higher levels of 
income than currently available from fixed income securities. Securities owned will be primarily common 
stocks with a history of raising dividends annually for at least five years. Such a strategy has provided 
higher returns with lower volatility than a broad large cap equity index over the long term.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
We are pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Fund for the year ended 
December 31, 2013. The net asset value per share of the Fund increased from $98.24 as at 31st 
December 2012 to $105.28 as at 31st December 2013. This represents a total return after fees for the 
Fund of 7.17%. The total assets of the Fund had grown from $17.2 million at 31st December 2012 to 
$32.7 million as at 31st December 2013. The Managers ensured that the Fund maintained adequate 
liquidity through holding an appropriate portion of the Fund’s assets in cash.

ANNUAL REVIEW
The BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund was launched on September 28th, 2012. The Fund is 
constructed to replicate a basket of indexes comprising ‘Dividend Aristocrats’ from the United States, 
Europe, and Asia.  Inclusion in the portfolio is dependent on the quality of each individual holding as well 
as the growth and sustainability of its dividend.  Such companies’ stocks are attractive to yield-seeking 
investors as an alternative to low yielding bonds.

In the first calendar year of operation the fund performed as expected up to May when Federal Reserve 
Chairman Ben Bernanke announced that the Fed would embark on a reduction of Quantitative Easing 
resulting in a sharp selloff that affected dividend paying stocks in particular. This impacted the new fund 
due to its large overweight in high yielding dividend paying stocks.
 
 
OUTLOOK
Entering 2014, the portfolio remains overweight US domiciled stocks as economic conditions in the 
United States are improving ahead of the rest of the world.  On a practical level, the bulk of ‘Dividend 
Aristocrats’ tend to be from the US anyway, a situation unlikely to change and that will continue to 
influence the fund’s construction.

One note of caution surrounds the pace of the end of US quantitative easing.  QE has supported high 
yielding stocks; consequently, the Managers have oriented the portfolio more toward growth and income 
rather than income and growth further reducing the portfolio’s exposure to high yielding stocks.  Never-
theless, the focus on the ‘Dividend Aristocrats’ of the world remains the foundation of equity selection.
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Global Dividend Income Fund US$

Proposed Strategy Allocation

Overall the fund employs a total return strategy but with an empha-
sis on generating higher levels of income than currently available
from fixed income securities. Securities owned will be primarily com-
mon stocks with a history of raising dividends annually for at least
five years. Such a strategy has provided higher returns with lower
volatility than a broad large cap equity index over the long term. 

Suitable for investors that understand market risk with a long
time horizon and an income objective.

Fund Information

Strategy Performance

Key Statistics

 For more information on any of our funds, contact your investment advisor or download a
prospectus, which contains important information about a fund’s investment goals, sales charges, expenses and risks. Please read the prospectus carefully before investing.

www.biasglobalportfolios.com

Sector Allocation

Top Holdings DivYld

U.S.A. 60.6%
Europe 31.8%
Smaller Asia 0%
Australia 2.4%
Canada 4.9%
Other 0.3%

Inception Date September 28, 2012

Base Currency USD

Benchmark S&P Global 1200 Index

NAV per share $105.28

Subscriptions/Redemptions Weekly

Management Fee 1.50%

Bloomberg Ticker BIASGDI KY

ISIN number KYG108811376

Cusip G10881137

Number of Holdings 40

AUM $32,706,561.66

Standard Deviation 8.70%

Sharpe Ratio 0.93%

Beta 0.89%

Technology 3.1%
Industrials 17.5%
Financials 20.2%
Consumer Staples 12.4%
Consumer Disc. 12.6%
Basic Materials 11.8%
Health Care 10.6%
Utilities 1.0%
Telecom Services 3.2%
Energy 7.6%

Vanguard Dividend Appreciation 15.78%

SPDR S&P Euro DVD Aristocrat Index Fund 4.76%

SPDR S&P UK DVD Aristocrat Index Fund 4.27%

Roche Holding AG 3.44%

HCP Inc 3.20%

* Past performance is no guarantee of the future.

As of December 31, 2013

Performance* Q4/13 1-Year 2-Year
(Annualized)

3-Year
(Annualized)

Since Incept.
(Annualized)

Dividend Fund 2.76% 7.17% — — 4.18%

GDI Total Return           4.07% 11.14% — — 9.19%

Benchmark 8.01% 26.01% — — 29.70%

Risk Rating

low high

Management Commentary
The BIAS Global Dividend Fund lagged the S&P Global 1200
Index as the equity advance resumed with considerable vigour
despite the Fed’s announcement of asset purchase reductions
commencing in January 2014. In reaction, growth and cycli-
cally oriented stocks rallied led by the US, and Europe while
Asia lagged. Top performing sectors were Technology,
Industrials, Health Care, and Consumer Discretionary. High in-
come sectors like Staples, Utilities, and Telecom underper-
formed. Over the long term dividend paying stocks will perform
well and are the best source of income but they will lag when
markets are rising sharply. 
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KPMG
P.O. Box 493 
Century Yard, Cricket Square 
Grand Cayman  KY1-1106 
CAYMAN ISLANDS 

KPMG, a Cayman Islands partnership and a member �rm of the 
KPMG network of independent member �rms a�liated with KPMG 
International, a Swiss cooperative. 

June 24, 2014 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of:
BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC – BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund – US$ Segregated 
Portfolio (the “Fund”), which comprise the statement of financial position, as at December 31, 2013, the statements 
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the Fund’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 
December 31, 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Telephone             +1 345 949 4800 
Fax                           +1 345 949 7164 
Internet     www.kpmg.ky 
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 2102  3102  etoN   

Assets
 468,233,1 $ 833,210,2 $ 5 ,3 stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4, 5  31,318,559  15,596,383 
 683,63  471,74   elbaviecer sdnediviD
 151,5  823,5   stessa rehtO
 079,323     –   elbaviecer noitpircsbuS

 457,492,71  993,383,33    stessa latoT
        

Equity
Net capital paid in on shares of capital stock            7            $     31,278,249                $   17,403,817   

   )334,371(  313,824,1    sgninrae deniateR
       

  483,032,71  265,607,23      $   )stessa ten( ytiuqe latoT
          

Liabilities 
    –  374,806   rekorb ot euD

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6  68,299  64,370 
    –  56    elbayap snoitpmedeR

  seitilibail latoT 676,837 64,370 
        

Total equity and liabilities  $ 33,383,399 $ 17,294,754 
         

 783,571  756,013  7 gnidnatstuo serahS I ssalC
         

   erahs rep eulav tessa teN $ 105.28 $ 98.24 
         

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Authorised for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on June 24, 2014: 

ROBERT R. PIRES   MARK MELVIN  
    

 rotceriD  rotceriD
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 2102  3102  etoN   

Investment income 
 518,171 $ 353,350,1 $  emocni rehto dna sdnediviD
 533  859   emocni tseretnI

Net realised gain on sale of financial assets and 
   liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4  394,688  3,370 
Change in net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets 
   and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4, 11  1,783,733  (152,391) 

 )085,76(  )257,88(   ssol egnahcxe ngierof teN

 )154,44(  089,341,3   )ssol( emocni tnemtsevni latoT 
        

Expenses 
 )130,75(  )826,793(  6 seef tnemeganaM
 )709,33(  )237,891(  9 esnepxe xat gnidlohhtiW
 )203,31(  )067,06(  6 seef noitartsinimda dna ydotsuC
 )247,42(  )765,75(   sesnepxe lareneg rehtO

    –  )000,5(  6 seef ’srotceriD

 )289,821(  )786,917(   sesnepxe latoT 
        

Income/ (loss) for the year  )334,371( $ 392,424,2 $  
        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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   Total equity 
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ -

    
Loss for the year  (173,433) 

    
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

 718.304,71  serahS I ssalC fo eussI
 -  serahS I ssalC fo noitpmedeR

 17,403,817 

Balance as at December  $ 2102 ,13 17,230,384

Income for the year  2,424,293 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 
Issue of Class I Shares  15,258,772 
Redemption of Class I Shares  (1,384,339) 
Distribution to shareholders  (822,548) 

 13,051,885 

Balance as at December  $ 3102 ,13 32,706,562

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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 2102  3102     

Cash flows from operating activities
 )334,371( $ 394,424,2 $ raey eht rof )ssol(/emocnI

Adjustments to reconcile income/(loss) to net cash used 
 in operating activities: 

 )477,847,51(  )055,207,04(  stnemtsevni fo esahcruP 
 Proceeds from sale of inve  073,3  278,922,72  stnemts
 Net realised gain on financial assets and 
    liabilities at fair value through  )073,3(  )886,493(  ssol ro tiforp
 Change in net unrealised (gain)/loss on financial assets and 

 193,251  )018,458,1(  ssol ro tiforp hguorht eulav riaf ta seitilibail    
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

 )683,63(  )887,01(  elbaviecer sdnediviD 
 151,5(  )771(  stessa rehtO 
 073,46  929,3  sesnepxe deurcca dna elbayap stnuoccA 
    –  374,806  rekorb ot euD 

Net cash used in operating activities  )389,647,51(  )642,696,21(  
       

Cash flows from financing activities 
     –  )845,228(  sredloherahs ot noitubirtsid no stnemyaP

Proceeds from subscriptions of Cla ,51  serahS I ss 582,742  17,079,847 
    –  )472,483,1(  serahS I ssalC fo snoitpmeder no stnemyaP

Net cash provided by financing activities  748,970,71  029,573,31  
       

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  468,233,1  474,976  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year     –  468,233,1  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  468,233,1 $ 833,210,2 $ 
       

Supplemental information 
 533 $ 859 $ deviecer tseretnI
 924,531 $ 963,130,1 $ deviecer sdnediviD
 709,33 $ 237,891 $  diap sexaT

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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1. Incorporation and principal activity 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC (the “Company”) was incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company and 
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on July 11, 
2006. The Company registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on November 21, 2006. The 
address of its registered office is Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd., Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, 
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.   

The Company established BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio (the “Fund”), a 
segregated portfolio of assets, on September 28, 2012. The Fund commenced operations on September 28, 
2012.   

At December 31, 2013, the Company has four segregated portfolios, namely, the Fund, BIAS Global Balanced 
Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio, BIAS Short Duration Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio and BIAS 
Global Equities Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio. Additional segregated portfolios may be established by the 
Company in the future at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. As a matter of Cayman Islands law, the 
assets of one segregated portfolio will not be available to meet the liabilities of another. However, the Company 
is a single legal entity which may operate or have assets held on its behalf or be subject to claims in other 
jurisdictions which may not necessarily recognise such segregation. 

The Fund is a segregated portfolio and a separate individually managed pool of assets constituting, in effect, a 
separate fund with its own investment objective. The assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the Company 
or other segregated portfolios are not included in these financial statements. BIAS Asset Management Ltd. (the 
“Investment Manager”), a related party through common directors, acts as the Fund’s Investment Manager 
under the Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager has entered into an agreement to 
delegate its duties to Bermuda Investment Advisory Services Limited (the “Sub-Manager”). BIAS (Cayman) 
Limited and Comerica Bank (the “Custodians”) act as the Fund’s custodians, and Cayman National Trust Co. Ltd. 
(the “Administrator”) acts as the Fund’s administrator. 

Assets are identified as either general Company or Segregated Portfolio assets. Those attributable to a 
segregated portfolio comprise assets representing the total equity attributable to the segregated portfolio and 
other assets attributable to or held within that segregated portfolio. They are held separately from, and are not 
comingled with, assets of the other segregated portfolios noted above. The General Assets of the Company 
comprise a cash balance of $1, representing the amount received upon issuance of the Ordinary Shares (see 
Note 7). As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the general assets are not presented separately on the statement of 
financial position due to immateriality. No income or expense shave been attributed to the general assets to 
date. 

The objective of the Fund is to invest in a wide variety of global equity securities issued throughout the world. 
The Fund may invest in “growth” or “value” securities, securities that are considered to pay dividends on a 
consistent basis in excess of the average dividend paid by companies within the index which the Fund’s target 
investments are situated. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with prior year. 

(a) Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”). 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 (a) Basis of preparation (continued) 
The financial statements are presented in United States (“US”) dollars, which is also the Fund’s functional 
currency, and not the local currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Fund’s Class I Shares 
are issued in US dollars, and assets and liabilities are denominated in US dollars. 
The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and do not 
distinguish between current and non-current items. All the Fund’s assets and liabilities are held for the 
purpose of being traded or are expected to be realised within one year.  

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with prior 
year except for the changes below and noted in Note 2(f). 

These financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities held at fair 
value through profit or loss. Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are 
stated at amortised cost or redemption amount which is considered to approximate fair value due to the 
short-term nature of these assets and liabilities. 

The Fund has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any 
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2013: 

(i) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The nature and the effect of the changes are explained below: 

IFRS 10 builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in 
whether a Fund should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent company. The 
standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where this is difficult to 
assess. The new standard does not have any material impact on the Fund’s financial position or 
performance. 

 (b) Investment income and expense 

Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date and is reported gross of withholding tax and the 
corresponding withholding tax is recognised as a tax expense. Bank interest income and expense is 
accounted for on the accrual basis.  

(c) Financial assets and liabilities 

(i) Classification 

 In accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, all investments are 
classified as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, under the sub-category of 
financial assets and liabilities held for trading. 

 Financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost which includes 
cash and cash equivalents, dividends receivable, subscriptions receivable and other assets. Financial 
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost and include 
accounts payable and accrued expenses and redemptions payable. 

(ii) Recognition/derecognition 
 Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date – the date on which the Fund 

commits to purchase or sell the investment. Other financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the 
date they are originated. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(ii) Recognition/derecognition (continued) 
 Investments and other financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 

investments have expired or the Fund has transferred all risks and rewards of ownership. The Fund 
derecognises a financial liability when its contracted obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

 Gains and losses on the disposal of financial assets and liabilities are computed on a first-in, first-out 
basis (“FIFO”) and are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they 
arise within net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities are recognised in 
the statement of comprehensive income within net realised gain/(loss) on sale of fair value through 
profit or loss. 

 (iii) Measurement 
 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value 

plus directly attributable transaction costs. ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Fund 
has access at that date. 

        Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial 
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost, less impairment 
losses, if any. 

Financial liabilities arising from the Class I Shares issued by the Fund are carried at the redemption 
amount representing the shareholders’ right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets.

(iv)  Fair value measurement principles 
                 The Fund’s investments are valued on the Friday of each week and at month-end (the “valuation 

date”). In accordance with IFRS 13, for those financial assets and liabilities, at fair value through profit 
and loss, which have a quoted price in an active market, the Fund uses the last traded price in cases 
where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. Where the last traded price falls outside the 
bid-ask spread, the bid price is used for long securities and the ask price for securities held short. There 
were no financial instruments for which quotations were not readily available in active markets on a 
recognised public stock exchange during any of the periods presented. 

(v) Identification and measurement of impairment 
A financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if there is 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset, and that loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that 
asset that can be estimated reliably. 

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted 
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income when incurred. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognised. When a 
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

(vi)  Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Fund has a legal right to offset the amounts and it 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at 
fair through profit or loss and foreign exchange gains and losses. 

 (d) Operating expenses

The Fund is responsible for all normal operating expenses including audit fees, stamp and other duties and 
charges incurred on the acquisition and realisation of investments. All expenses are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income on the accruals basis. 

 (e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include money market investments, and balances held with the investment 
broker with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in their fair value. Money market funds are valued at the net asset value as provided by the 
managers of the underlying funds.  

(f) Share capital 

The Fund classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance 
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. 

As at December 31, 2012, the Fund classified the Class I shares as financial liabilities. As at December 31, 
2013, the Fund changed the classification of the Class I shares to equity in accordance with IAS 32 - 
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The comparative figures presented in the Financial 
Statements have been restated to reflect this reclassification (refer to Note 13 for impact on comparative 
figures presented). This reclassification had no impact on the equity or net assets attributable to holders of 
redeemable shares of the Fund for the periods presented.  

Ordinary Shares are classified as share capital of the Company. The Class I Shares are the most subordinate 
class of financial instruments in the Fund.  The Class I Shares provide investors with the right to require 
redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the investor’s share in the Fund’s net assets at each weekly 
redemption date and also in the event of the Fund’s liquidation. 

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or redeem 
that instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as equity, if it meets all of the following 
conditions: 

it entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets in the event of the Fund’s 
liquidation; 

it is in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments; 

all financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of 
instruments have identical features; 

apart from the contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or redeem the instrument for 
cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would 
require classification as a liability; and 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

 (f) Share capital (continued) 

the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on 
the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the 
recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument. 

The Fund’s Class I Shares meet these conditions and are classified as equity. 

When Class I Shares recognised as equity are redeemed, the par value of the shares is presented as a 
deduction from net capital paid on shares.  Any premium or discount to par value is recognised as an 
adjustment to net capital paid on shares, or if insufficient to retained earnings. Redemptions payable are 
classified as financial liabilities and are measured at the present value of the redemption amounts.  

 (g) Foreign currency 

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US dollars are translated at exchange rates 
prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions in other currencies during the period are translated to US 
dollars at the rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. The resulting profits or losses are disclosed in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss as net foreign exchange 
loss, except for those arising on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are 
recognised as a component of net realised gain on sale or change in net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. 

 (h) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 
Management does not believe that the estimates and assumptions have a significant risk of causing material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

 (i) New accounting pronouncements 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods 
beginning after January 1, 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of 
these are expected to have a significant effect on the measurement of the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements of the Fund. However, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, will change the classification of 
financial assets. 

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments  

IFRS 9 specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets and liabilities, including some 
hybrid contracts. IFRS 9 improves and simplifies the approach for classification and measurement of 
financial assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39. IFRS 9 applies a consistent approach to 
classifying financial assets and replaces the numerous categories of financial assets in IAS 39, each of 
which had its own classification criteria. The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 is 1 January 2018 with 
early application permitted. Based on the initial assessment, the standard is not expected to have a material 
impact on the Fund. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(i) New accounting pronouncements (continued) 

Amendment to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation 

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 by explaining when an entity currently 
has a legally enforceable right to set-off and when gross settlement is considered to be equivalent to net 
settlement. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and 
interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. Based on the initial assessment, 
the standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Fund.

3. Cash and cash equivalents 
      2013  2012 

 959,76  303,253,1 $   rekorb ta hsaC
Money market funds held at broker    660,035  1,264,905 

   latoT $ 2,012,338 $ 1,332,864 
        

4. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

The following tables summarise financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss as at    
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related changes as presented in the statements of financial position and 
comprehensive income: 

2013 
tsoC   Fair value

Financial assets held for trading: 
 955,813,13 $ 041,616,92 $   seitiruces ytiuqE  

 Net realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value 
    through profit or loss: 

 886,493 $ seitiruces ytiuqE  

Change in net unrealised gain on financial assets at 
 fair value through profit or loss: 

   018,458,1 $ *seitiruces ytiuqE  

 *Included in this amount are transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2013 of $71,077. 

2012 
tsoC   Fair value

Financial assets held for trading: 
 383,695,51 $ 477,847,51 $   seitiruces ytiuqE  

 Net realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value 
    through profit or loss: 

 073,3 $ seitiruces ytiuqE  

Change in net unrealised loss on financial assets at 
 fair value through profit or loss: 

 )193,251( $ seitiruces ytiuqE  
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4. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The net realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents the difference 
between the acquisition price, or the carrying amount of a financial instrument and its sale/settlement price. The 
movement in net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss represents the 
difference between the acquisition price, or carrying amount of the respective financial instrument at the 
beginning of the period, and its carrying amount at the end of the period.  

5. Fair value measurements 
The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 
inputs used in measuring fair value: 

Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the Fund has the ability to access at the valuation date. An active market for the asset or liability is 
a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume 
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. Fair value is determined through the use of models or other 
valuation methodologies. Level 2 inputs include the following: 

a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.  

b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, that is, 
markets in which there are few transactions for the asset or liability, the prices are not current, 
or price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers, or in which 
little information is released publicly. 

c) Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g. interest rate 
and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, 
loss severities, credit risks and default rates). 

d) Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means. 

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs reflect the Fund’s own 
assumptions about how market participants would be expected to value the asset or liability. 
Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances, 
other than market data obtained from sources independent of the Fund and might include the 
Fund’s own data. 

An investment is always categorised as Level 1, 2 or 3 in its entirety. In certain cases, the fair 
value measurement for an investment may use a number of different inputs that fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value 
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
The assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires 
judgment and is specific to the investment. 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
DIVIDEND INCOME FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)

74



5. Fair value measurements (continued)

The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the Fund’s financial assets measured at fair value 
at December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

 latoT 3 leveL 2 leveL 1 leveL 3102

Money market funds $ 660,035 $ –    $ –    $  660,035 
Equity securities: 

 United States  18,848,208  –     –     18,848,208 
 United Kingdom  3,319,307  –     –     3,319,307 
 Australia  694,866  –     –     694,866 

 864,386,1     –     –  864,386,1  adanaC 
 478,455     –     –  478,455  niapS 
 279,549,3     –     –  279,549,3  dnalerI 

 Switzerland  1,670,984  –     –     1,670,984 
 Netherlands  600,880  –     –     600,880 

 Total equity securities  31,318,559  –     –     31,318,559 
          

 495,879,13 $    – $    – $ 495,879,13 $ latoT 
          

 There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended December 31, 2013. 

 latoT 3 leveL 2 leveL 1 leveL 2102

Money market funds $ 1,264,905 $ –    $ –    $  1,264,905 
Equity securities: 

 United States  7,779,457  –     –     7,779,457 
 United Kingdom  2,698,766  –     –     2,698,766 
 Australia  1,286,774  –     –     1,286,774 

 879,100,1     –     –  879,100,1  adanaC 
 Singapore  483,467  –     –     483,467 

 178,054     –     –  178,054  ylatI 
 099,693     –     –  099,693  lizarB 

 Switzerland  390,649  –     –     390,649 
 Bermuda  384,981  –     –     384,981 

 000,863     –     –  000,863  yawroN 
 Netherlands  354,450  –     –     354,450 

 Total equity securities  15,596,383  –     –     15,596,383 
          

 882,168,61 $    – $    – $ 882,168,61 $ latoT 
          

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s assets and liabilities (by class) not 
measured at fair value at December 31, 2013 but for which fair value is disclosed. 
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5. Fair value measurements (continued) 

 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL  

Assets
 303,253,1 $    – $    – $ 303,253,1 $ hsaC

Dividends receivable  –     47,174  –     47,174 

 774,993,1 $    – $ 471,74 $ 303,253,1 $ latoT
         

Liabilities 
Due to Broker $ 608,473 $ –    $ –    $ 608,473 
Accounts payable and 
 accrued expenses  –     68,299 $ –     68,299 

 277,676 $    – $ 992,86 $ 374,806 $ latoT
         

The assets and liabilities in the table above are carried at amortised cost; their carrying values are a reasonable 
approximation of fair value. 

Dividends receivable classified in Level 2 include the contracted amounts for obligations due to the Fund. 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and due to broker represent the contractual amounts and obligations 
due by the Fund for settlement of expenses. 

6. Fees and expenses 

Management fees 
The Investment Manager of the Fund is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Fund, including 
managing the investment portfolio, providing investment analysis and making decisions relating to the 
investment of assets of the Fund. The Fund is responsible for the payment of a management fee to the 
Investment Manager for its services to the Fund equal to 1.5% per annum of the net asset value (“NAV”) of the 
Fund, calculated weekly and payable monthly in arrears. During the year ended December 31, 2013, 
management fees totalled $397,628 (2012: $57,031). As at December 31, 2013, management fees payable 
totalled $40,852 (2012: $21,538) and were included within accounts payable and accrued expenses on the 
statement of financial position. The Investment Manager compensates the Sub-Manager for performing its 
delegated duties. 

Administration fees 
The Administrator is entitled to receive fees amounting to 0.10% per annum based on the weekly NAV of the 
Fund, and subject to an annual minimum fee of $30,000. The administration fee is calculated weekly and is 
payable monthly in arrears. Administration fees for the year ended December 31, 2013 totalled $30,483 (2012: 
$9,500). 

The Administrator and the Investment Manager are reimbursed by the Fund for other fees and expenses that are 
identifiable with the Fund.  
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6. Fees and expenses (continued) 

Custody fees 
BIAS (Cayman) Limited is entitled to receive fees amounting to 0.10% per annum based on the average weekly 
NAV of the Fund. The custody fee is calculated weekly and payable monthly in arrears.  

Directors’ fees 
Each Director who is not an officer or employee of the Investment Manager or Sub-Manager receives a flat 
annual fee for serving in such capacity. The fee will be in accordance with reasonable and customary Directors’ 
fees. The Directors are entitled to reimbursement from the Fund for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by them on behalf of the Fund. 

7. Share capital  

The Company has an authorised share capital as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 of $50,001 divided into 100 
Ordinary Shares of $0.01 par value each and 5,000,000 non-voting, Redeemable Participating Shares of $0.01 
par value each divided upon issue into Classes for each of the segregated portfolio funds. The Ordinary Shares 
of the Company are owned by the Investment Manager, and are the only shares of the Company with voting 
rights. The Company has authorised the issuance of up to 1,000,000 Class I Shares in the Fund. 

The issued share capital of the Company and Fund is as follows: 

 2102 3102  
 eulaV raP rebmuN  

(US$) 
Number Par Value 

(US$) 
      
     :diap ylluf dna deussI

Company 
Ordinary Shares 100 1 100 1

      
Fund
Class I Shares 

Balance at beginning of year 
Issued during the year 
Redeemed during the year 

175,387 
148,852 
(13,582) 

1,753 
1,488 
(135) 

-
175,387 

-

-
1,753 

-
 357,1 783,571 601,3 756,013 raey fo dne ta ecnalaB

Each Class I Share represents a beneficial interest in the Fund ranking equally in all distributions when and as 
declared payable. An unlimited number of the Fund’s shares may be issued which are redeemable each Monday 
and at such other times as the Directors may determine in their discretion at the shareholders’ option at the then 
current NAV per share, in accordance with the terms of the Information Memorandum. 

Notwithstanding the redeemable shareholders’ rights to redemptions above, the Fund has the right, as set out in 
its Information Memorandum, to impose a redemption gate limit of 5% of the Class I Shares of the Fund or 
$100,000 in any redemption period in order to manage redemption levels and maintain the strength of the 
Fund’s capital base. 
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7. Share capital (continued) 

In addition, no sales will be permitted within the first 90 days from initial purchase and a redemption fee of 2% 
will be assessed on Class I Shares redeemed within 12 months after their date of purchase and 1% on Class I 
Shares redeemed beyond 12 months, subject to a minimum fee of $25 per redemption request. The redemption 
fee will be shared equally between the Investment Manager and the Fund, and may be waived at the discretion 
of the Directors. 

The holders of the Ordinary Shares have a right to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any general 
meeting of the Company. The Ordinary Shares are not entitled to dividends nor do they participate in the profits 
of neither the Company nor the Fund. On a liquidation of the Company, the General Assets of the Company, 
being the assets of the Company which are not assets of the Segregated Portfolios, shall be available for 
distribution to the holders of the Ordinary Shares pro rata according to the number of Ordinary Shares held by 
them. The Ordinary Shares are held by the Investment Manager. 

The holders of the Class I Shares are not entitled to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any general 
meeting of the Company. Holders of the Class I Shares are entitled to receive dividends and participate in the 
profits of the Fund. On a liquidation of the Fund, the holders of the Class I Shares have a right to participate in 
the surplus assets of the Fund after the payment of all creditors. 

8.  Distributions 

The Fund intends to make quarterly distributions of substantially all or a portion of its dividend income earned 
to investors. The Fund at its discretion may pay out less than the entire amount of net investment income earned 
in a particular period and may at times pay out such accumulated undistributed income earned in other periods 
in order to permit the Fund to maintain a more stable level of distributions. The Fund may also make additional 
distributions of capital gains at the Board of Directors’ discretion. 

Distributions may be payable in cash or in additional Class I Shares at each investor’s election. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013 distributions totalling $822,548 (2012: $Nil) were paid in additional 
Class I shares at the investors’ election. 

9. Income taxes 

The Cayman Islands at present impose no taxes on profit, income, capital gains or appreciation in value of the 
Fund. In the event that such taxes are levied, the Company has received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Cabinet of Cayman Islands exempting it from all such taxes until July 25, 2026. As such, no provision for such 
taxes is included in the accompanying financial statements. 

The Fund may, however, be subject to foreign withholding tax and capital gains tax in certain jurisdictions in 
respect of income derived from its investments. 
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10. Financial instruments and associated risks 

The Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks in pursuing its stated investment objective and policy. These 
risks are defined in IFRS 7 as including market risk (which in turn includes price, interest rate and currency 
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Fund takes exposure to certain of these risks to generate investment 
returns on its portfolio, although these risks can also potentially result in a reduction in the Fund’s net assets. 
The Investment Manager will use its best endeavours to minimise the potential adverse effects of these risks on 
the Fund’s performance where it can do so while still managing the investments of the Fund in a way that is 
consistent with the Fund’s investment objective and policy.  

The risks, and the measures adopted by the Fund for managing these risks, are detailed below. 

(a) Price risk  

Market price risk is defined in IFRS 7 as the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or its future 
cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.  

The Fund’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of equity securities, the values of 
which are determined by market forces and there is accordingly a risk that market prices can change in a 
way that is adverse to the Fund’s performance. An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in the prices of 
equity securities as at the reporting date would have increased or decreased net assets by $313,186 (2012: 
$155,964). 

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s positions on a daily 
basis and reports regularly to the Board of Directors, which reviews the information on the Fund’s overall 
market exposures provided by the Investment Manager at its periodic meetings. 

As at December 31, 2013, the overall market exposures and concentration of risk are limited to the amounts 
presented in the statement of financial position. 

(b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund’s only interest-bearing financial asset or liability is 
cash and cash equivalents of $2,012,338 (2012: $1,332,864). An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in 
interest rates as at the reporting date would have increased or decreased net assets by $20,123 (2012: 
$13,329). 

(c) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than US dollars, the functional currency of the 
Fund. The Fund is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities denominated in other 
currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than US dollars, the functional currency of the 
Fund. The Fund is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities denominated in other 
currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. 
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10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

(c) Currency risk (continued) 

The fair values of the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency and securities denominated in foreign 
currencies at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

 2102  3102     
 547,819  559,707 $  ralloD nailartsuA
 462,404,1  418,259,1   ralloD naidanaC
 511,593  405,738,1   cnarF ssiwS
 418,364  609,840,3   oruE
 370,830,2  661,833,4   dnuoP hsitirB

   ralloD eropagniS –   487,808 

 918,707,5  115,401,41 $  latoT
      

The Fund’s net assets would increase or decrease by $141,045 (2012: $57,078) if the US dollar weakened 
or strengthened, respectively, by 100 basis points against the other currencies with all other variables 
remaining constant. 

 (d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities as they fall due. 

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the Fund’s financial assets are greater than the financial liabilities and 
investments held are liquid in nature. All liabilities are expected to mature within twelve months of the 
statement of financial position date. As such, the Fund’s management does not anticipate any material 
losses as a result of liquidity risk.   

  eerht ot enO naht sseL 
 latoT shtnom htnom eno 3102

 374,806    – 374,806 rekorB ot euD
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ –    $ 68,299 $ 68,299 

 277,676 $ 992,86 $ 374,806 $  seitilibail latoT
        

  eerht ot enO naht sseL 
 latoT shtnom htnom eno 2102

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ –    $ 64,370 $ 64,370 

 073,46 $ 073,46 $    – $ seitilibail latoT
        

As described in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Fund’s Class I Shares are redeemable at the 
shareholder’s option on a weekly basis, and therefore the Fund is potentially exposed to weekly 
redemptions by its shareholders. 
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10. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

 (e) Credit risk 

Credit risk is defined in IFRS 7 as the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.  

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are held with Comerica Bank, which is rated “A2” (2012: “A2”) 
based on rating agency Moody’s ratings. Management regularly monitors the institution’s credit risk and 
does not anticipate any significant losses from this concentration.  

The Fund’s maximum credit exposure at the reporting date is $2,012,338 (2012: $1,332,864) which is the 
sum of the cash and cash equivalents as reported in the statement of financial position. 

 (f) Regulatory environment risk 

A changing regulatory environment, including, but not limited to, changes in relevant tax laws, securities 
laws, bankruptcy laws or accounting standards, may make the business of the Fund less profitable or 
unprofitable. The ability of the Fund to carry on business from the Cayman Islands or as a Cayman Islands 
Fund will depend upon its initial and continuing compliance with the relevant provisions of Cayman 
Islands law and, in particular, the Mutual Funds Law. Management regularly monitors the institution’s 
regulatory environment risk and does not anticipate any significant changes to the Fund. 

 (g) Dependence on the Investment Manager risk 

The Investment Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the Fund. The success of the Fund 
depends upon the ability of the Investment Manager to develop and implement investment strategies that 
achieve the Fund’s investment objectives.  

11. Capital risk management 

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets of the Fund. The amount of net assets can change 
significantly on a weekly basis as the Fund is subject to weekly subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion 
of the Directors. The Fund’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a 
going concern in order to provide returns for holders of Class I Shares and benefits for other stakeholders and to 
maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund. The Fund’s 
policies with respect to managing tis capital risk are discussed in Note 7 above. 

The Board of Directors and Investment Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of the net assets of the 
Fund. 

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

12. Related party transactions 

As at December 31, 2013, the Directors of the Fund held 3,749 (2012: 2,000) Class I Shares in the Fund. As at 
December 31, 2013, persons or entities related to the Directors, the Investment Manager, or the Sub-Manager 
held 9.75% (2012: 3.82%) of the Class I Shares in the Fund. 

BIAS (Cayman) Limited earns trade commission revenue based on trades executed within the Fund’s normal course 
of business. Commissions are calculated by BIAS (Cayman) Limited based on the gross trade amount and security 
type. This is recorded as part of change in net unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss in the statement of comprehensive income. 

BIAS (Cayman) Limited and the Sub-Manager are related to the Fund by virtue of common control. 
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13.  Prior period restatement  

As discussed in Note 2(f), the Class I Shares of the Fund were presented as financial liabilities as at and for the 
year ended December 31, 2012. The Class I Shares have been classified as equity in accordance with IFRS and 
the following corrections have been made to the comparative figures presented in the Financial Statements: 

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares of $17,230,384 as at December 31, 2012 has been 
disaggregated into Net capital paid in on shares of capital stock and Retained earnings as presented in the 
comparative figures on the statement of financial position for the period ended December 31, 2013. There 
has been no impact on the value of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares or total equity as 
a result of this reclassification for the periods presented. 

The statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares has been reclassified to 
be presented as a statement of changes in equity.  

14.  Subsequent events 

From January 1, 2014 through June 24, 2014 the Fund received subscriptions of $2,492,339 and paid 
redemptions of $2,373,830. 
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Robert R. Pires
Chairman
BIAS Global Portfolios SPC
BIAS Global Equities Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio
August 4, 2014

INVESTMENT POLICY
The Segregated Portfolio (the “Fund”) seeks to achieve its goal by investing in a wide variety of global 
equity securities issued throughout the world. The Fund is managed as a core global equity product and 
is not constrained by a particular investment style. 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
We are pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Fund for the year ended 
31st December 2013. The net asset value per share of the Fund increased from $87.75 as at 31st 
December 2012 to $103.38 as at 31st December 2013. This represents a total return after fees for the 
Fund of 17.81% for the calendar year compared with the Fund’s benchmark, which is the S & P Global 
1200 Index that returned 26.01%. The total assets of the Fund advanced from $16.89 million at 31st 
December 2012 to $17.90 million at 31st December 2013 largely due to strong performance in the 
second half of year when more growth-orientated stocks regained a leading position.

ANNUAL REVIEW
Equity markets were posting impressive returns, up over 13 percent through May 22 until it became 
apparent that the Fed was prepared to reduce Quantitative Easing.  Investors began selling both bonds 
and stocks.  The S&P 500 changed course and ended the quarter flat.  Japan’s Nikkei index advanced 
over 4 percent.  During the third quarter the US equity markets ceded leadership to other global markets 
as Europe, Asia and Australia played “catchup. Year-to-date, the US equity markets maintained a lead in 
performance, albeit smaller.  Global markets advanced into year-end as economic data showed growth 
in the US and improving momentum in the Eurozone.  Leadership was exhibited in Germany, Italy, and 
Spain, while laggards were Asia, emerging markets and Australia.  Sector leadership developed in 
Technology, Health Care, Industrials and Consumer Discretionary.
 
 
OUTLOOK
The 2014 global economy is exhibiting modest growth, low inflation and slowing improving jobs markets.  
We expect global growth to accelerate to 3.7 percent in 2014.  More of the momentum will develop in 
developed economies, narrowing the growth gap with emerging markets.   In the near term, downside 
risks are partially clarified on the announcement that the US Fed will start to moderate asset purchases 
in 2014 by $10 billion.  Europe is exiting recession, albeit at a slow rate.  Positive GDP growth is expected 
in Spain and Italy.   Globally, monetary policy is likely to remain both stimulative and highly innovative.  We 
do not expect any of the major central banks to raise benchmark rates in 2014, as some may continue 
to decline. US equities will likely rally early in the first Quarter.  We expect improving results in the global 
industrial and manufacturing sectors to gain strength into 2014 and likely broaden globally.
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Global Equities Fund US$
Current Strategy Allocation Risk Rating

The manager seeks to maximize long-term capital appreciation
via investment in a diverse mix of global securities. A strict top-
down approach is applied with a focus on macroeconomic
analysis. Strategic allocations are made in various geographic,
sector, style, and market capitalizations to exploit long-term
trends and minimize risk. 

Suitable for investors who have a higher tolerance for risk and a
long time horizon.

low high

Management Commentary

Fund Information

Performance

Morningstar Rating ™ 
of as at 31/12/2013

As of December 31, 2013

Key Statistics

For more information on any of our funds, contact your investment advisor or download a prospectus, which contains important information about a fund’s investment goals, sales charges,
expenses and risks. Please read the prospectus carefully before investing.

www.biasglobalportfolios.com

Sector Allocation

Top Holdings

North America 54.2%
Europe 26.6%
Smaller Asia 3.3%
Japan 7.9%
Latin America 2.5%
Australia 2.8%
Other 2.7%

Inception Date December 29, 2006

Base Currency USD

Benchmark* S&P Global 1200*

NAV per share $103.38

Subscriptions/Redemptions Weekly

Management Fee 1.80%

Number of Holdings 49

AUM $17,895,813.97

Standard Deviation 9.99

Sharpe Ratio 1.46

Performance Q4/14 1-Year 2-Year
(Annualized)

3-Year
(Annualized)

Since Incept.
(Annualized)

Equities Fund 7.71% 17.81% 11.04% 4.07% 0.48%

Benchmark* 8.01% 26.01% 21.29% 11.70% 4.53%

Financials 20.6%
Telecom Services 3.9%
Consumer Disc. 15.2%
Health Care 13.3%
Technology 14.4%
Consumer Staples 6.6%
Industrials 11.6%
Utilities 1.3%
Energy 6.9%
Basic Materials 6.3%

Vanguard European Equity Index 7.53%

Vanguard Global Enhanced Equity Fund 5.45%

Vanguard Total World Stk Index 4.88%

iShares S&P Glbl Industrials Index Fund 4.75%

iShares MSCI United Kingdom 4.41%

*Prior to April 1, 2012 benchmark was FTSE World Equity Index.

In the Fourth Quarter 2013, the BIAS Equity Fund was up 7.71
percent. Gains were led by exposure to the United States and
Europe as investors exulted in improving economic data. The
overweight exposure in Mexico added to positive returns after
reforms in the country gained traction. The Equity Fund sector
allocation helped boost returns as Information Technology,
Industrial, and Healthcare were the best performing sectors. The
underweight to Utilities, Consumer Staples, and Energy also
added to performance as those sectors ended the period in the
bottom half of the returns ladder.  
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KPMG
P.O. Box 493 
Century Yard, Cricket Square 
Grand Cayman  KY1-1106 
CAYMAN ISLANDS 

KPMG, a Cayman Islands partnership and a member �rm of the 
KPMG network of independent member �rms a�liated with KPMG 
International, a Swiss cooperative. 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of:
BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC – BIAS Global Equities Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BIAS Global Equities Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio 
(the “Fund”), which comprise the statement of financial position, as at December 31, 2013, the statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the Fund’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 
December 31, 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Telephone             +1 345 949 4800 
Fax                           +1 345 949 7164 
Internet     www.kpmg.ky 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

June 24, 2014 

86



 2102  3102   etoN   

Assets
 186,093 $ 362,936 $ 5 ,3 stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4, 5, 9  17,295,887  16,895,284 
 613,13  484,9   elbaviecer sdnediviD
 331,11  823,5   stessa rehtO

 414,823,71  269,949,71    stessa latoT
        

Equity
Net capital paid in on shares of capital stock            7            $     15,577,243                $   17,253,368   

 )874,953(  175,813,2    sgninrae deniateR
       

  098,398,61  418,598,71      $   )stessa ten( ytiuqe latoT
          

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6  51,398  69,312 

 324,913  057,2    elbayap snoitpmedeR
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4, 5, 9  -  45,789 

  seitilibail latoT 54,148 434,524 
        

Total equity and liabilities   $ 17,949,962 $ 17,328,414 
         

 035,291  501,371  7 gnidnatstuo serahS A ssalC
         

   erahs rep eulav tessa teN $ 103.38 $ 87.75 
         

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Authorised for issue on behalf of the Board of Directors on June 24, 2014: 

ROBERT R. PIRES   MARK MELVIN  
    

 rotceriD  rotceriD
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 2102  3102  etoN   
Investment income 

 763,125 $ 335,623 $  emocni rehto dna sdnediviD
Net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets 
 and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4  1,481,349  (10,953) 
Change in net unrealised gain on financial assets 
 and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4, 11  1,363,898  901,882 

 )616,33(  )062,72(   ssol egnahcxe ngierof teN 

 086,873,1  025,441,3   emocni tnemtsevni latoT 
        

Expenses 
 )795,333(  )900,392(  6 seef tnemeganaM
 )435,05(  )437,74(  6 seef noitartsinimda dna ydotsuC
 )121,16(  )038,24(   sesnepxe lareneg rehtO
 )766,6(  )000,5(  6 seef ’srotceriD

 )919,154(  )375,883(   sesnepxe latoT 
        

   raey eht rof emocnI $ 2,678,049 $ 821,208

        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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       Total equity
Balance at December 31, 2011  394,962,81  $   

Income for the year  802,128     

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity: 
 588,777,2     serahS A ssalC fo eussI 
 )696,479,4(     serahS A ssalC fo noitpmedeR 
 )118,691,2(       

Balance at December 31, 2012   $   16,893,890 

Income for the year  940,876,2     

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity: 
 159,153,2     serahS A ssalC fo eussI 
 )670,820,4(     serahS A ssalC fo noitpmedeR 
 )521,676,1(       

Balance at December 31, 2013   $  17,895,814 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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 2102  3102     

Cash flows from operating activities 
 802,128 $   940,876,2 $ raey eht rof emocnI

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash 
 provided by operating activities: 

 )147,372,21(  )500,350,02(  stnemtsevni fo esahcruP 
 Proceeds from sale of invest 5,916,22  stnem 42  14,380,616 
 Net realised (gain)/loss on financial assets and 
  liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  (1,547,986)  53,186 
 Change in net unrealised gain on financial assets and 
  liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  (1,464,943)  (901,882) 
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

 )613,13(  238,12  elbaviecer sdnediviD 
 )321,5(  508,5  stessa rehtO 

 866,41  )419,71(  sesnepxe deurcca dna elbayap stnuoccA 

Net cash provided by operating activities  616,750,2  083,142,2  
       

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from subscriptions of Cla 53,2  serahS A ss 1,951  2,777,885 

 )976,996,4(  )947,443,4(  serahS A ssalC fo snoitpmeder no stnemyaP

Net cash used in financing activities  )497,129,1(  )897,299,1(  
       

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  228,531  285,842  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  958,452  186,093  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  186,093 $ 362,936 $ 
       

Supplemental information 
 031,774 $ 007,933 $ deviecer sdnediviD
 355,501 $ 898,77 $  diap sexaT

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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1. Incorporation and principal activity 

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC (the “Company”) was incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company and 
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on July 11, 
2006. The Company registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on November 21, 2006. The 
address of its registered office is Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd., Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, 
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.   

The Company established BIAS Global Equities Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio (the “Fund”), a segregated 
portfolio of assets, on December 15, 2006. The Fund commenced operations on December 29, 2006.   

At December 31, 2013, the Company has four segregated portfolios, namely, the Fund, BIAS Global Balanced 
Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio, BIAS Short Duration Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio, and the 
BIAS Global Dividend Income Fund – US$ Segregated Portfolio. Additional segregated portfolios may be 
established by the Company in the future at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. As a matter of 
Cayman Islands law, the assets of one segregated portfolio will not be available to meet the liabilities of 
another. However, the Company is a single legal Fund which may operate or have assets held on its behalf or be 
subject to claims in other jurisdictions which may not necessarily recognise such segregation. 

The Fund is a segregated portfolio and a separate individually managed pool of assets constituting, in effect, a 
separate fund with its own investment objective. The assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the Company 
or other segregated portfolios are not included in these financial statements. BIAS Asset Management Ltd. (the 
“Investment Manager”), a related party through common directors, acts as the Fund’s Investment Manager 
under the Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager has entered into an agreement to 
delegate its duties to Bermuda Investment Advisory Services Limited (the “Sub-Manager”). BIAS (Cayman) 
Limited and Comerica Bank (the “Custodians”) act as the Fund’s custodians, and Cayman National Trust Co. Ltd. 
(the “Administrator”) acts as the Fund’s administrator. 

Assets are identified as either general Company or Segregated Portfolio assets. Those attributable to a 
segregated portfolio comprise assets representing the total equity attributable to the segregated portfolio and 
other assets attributable to or held within that segregated portfolio. They are held separately from, and are not 
comingled with, assets of the other segregated portfolios noted above. The General Assets of the Company 
comprise a cash balance of $1, representing the amount received upon issuance of the Ordinary Shares (see 
Note 7). As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the general assets are not presented separately on the statement of 
financial position due to immateriality. No income or expense shave been attributed to the general assets to 
date. 

The objective of the Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth in the value of assets. The policy of the 
Investment Manager and Sub-Manager is to hold a portfolio of global equities or limited partnership interests 
together with money market instruments, corporate bonds and Eurobonds of issuers throughout the world, 
government bonds of countries that are members of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and 
Development and other income producing securities. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with prior year. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”). 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 (a) Basis of preparation (continued) 

The financial statements are presented in United States (“US”) dollars, which is also the Fund’s functional 
currency, and not the local currency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Fund’s issued share 
capital, assets and liabilities are denominated in US dollars. 

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and do not 
distinguish between current and non-current items. All the Fund’s assets and liabilities are held for the 
purpose of being traded or are expected to be realised within one year. 

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period and are consistent with prior 
year except for the changes below and noted in Note 2(f). 

These financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities held at fair 
value through profit or loss. Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are 
stated at amortised cost or redemption amount which is considered to approximate fair value due to the 
short-term nature of these assets and liabilities. 

The Company has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any 
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2013: 

(i) IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities; and
(ii) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The nature and the effect of the changes are explained below. 

(i) IFRS 12 Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities 

As a result of application of IFRS 12, the Company has made disclosures about its involvement with 
unconsolidated structured entities (see Note 12). The disclosures related to its involvement with 
unconsolidated structured entities are not included in the comparative information. 

(ii) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

IFRS 10 builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in 
whether a Fund should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent company. 
The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where this is 
difficult to assess. The new standard does not have any material impact on the Fund’s financial 
position or performance. 

 (b) Investment income and expense 

Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date and is reported gross of withholding tax and the 
corresponding withholding tax is recognised as a tax expense. Bank interest income and expense is 
accounted for on the accrual basis.  

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss, using 
the effective interest method. 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities  

(i) Classification 
In accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, all investments 
are classified as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, under the sub-
category of financial assets and liabilities held for trading. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

(i) Classification (continued) 
Financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents, 
interest and dividends receivable and other assets. Financial liabilities that are not at fair value 
through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost and include accounts payable and accrued 
expenses and redemptions payable. 

(ii) Recognition/derecognition 
Purchases and sales of investments are initially recognised on the trade date – the date on which the 
Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Other financial assets and liabilities are recognised 
on the date the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  

Investments and other financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from 
the investments have expired or the Fund has transferred all risks and rewards of ownership. The 
Fund derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Gains and losses on the disposal of financial assets and liabilities are computed on a first-in, first-out 
basis (“FIFO”) and are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which 
they arise within net realised gain/(loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within net realised gain/(loss) on sale of fair 
value through profit or loss. 

(iii) Measurement 
 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value 

plus directly attributable transaction costs. ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the 
Fund has access at that date.  

 Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial 
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  

 Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost, less impairment 
losses, if any. 

Financial liabilities arising from the Class A Shares issued by the Fund are carried at the redemption 
amount representing the shareholders’ right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets. 

(iv) Fair value measurement principles 

The Fund’s investments are valued on the Friday of each week and at month-end (the “valuation 
date”). In accordance with IFRS 13, for those financial assets and liabilities, at fair value through 
profit and loss, which have a quoted price in an active market, the Fund uses the last traded price in 
cases where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. Where the last traded price falls 
outside the bid-ask spread, the bid price is used for long securities and the ask price for securities 
held short. There were no financial instruments for which quotations were not readily available in 
active markets on a recognised public stock exchange during any of the periods presented. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(iv) Fair value measurement principles (continued) 

The fair value of mutual funds and hedge funds are based on the net asset value of the Fund’s 
investment in those underlying funds as published or otherwise reported by the underlying 
administrators. The mutual funds and hedge funds in which the Fund invests will generally value 
securities on a national securities exchange or reported on a national market at the last reported sales 
price on the day of valuation. 

(v) Identification and measurement of impairment 

A financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if there is 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset, and that loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that 
asset that can be estimated reliably. 

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income when incurred. Interest on impaired assets continues to be 
recognised. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease 
in impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.  

(vii)  Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Fund has a legal right to offset the amounts and it 
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at 
fair through profit or loss and foreign exchange gains and losses. 

(viii) Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities 

The Company has concluded that unlisted closed-ended investment funds in which it invests, but 
that it does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entities because: 

the voting rights in the funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them as they 
relate to administrative tasks only; 

each fund's activities are restricted by its prospectus; and 

the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to 
investors. 

(d) Operating expenses 

The Fund is responsible for all normal operating expenses including audit fees, stamp and other duties and 
charges incurred on the acquisition and realisation of investments. All expenses are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income on the accruals basis. 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include money market investments, and balances held with the investment 
broker with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in their fair value. Money market funds are valued at the net asset value as provided by the 
managers of the underlying funds.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Share capital 

The Fund classifies financial instruments issued as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance 
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. 

As at December 31, 2012, the Fund classified the Class A shares as financial liabilities. As at December 31, 
2013, the Fund changed the classification of the Class A shares to equity in accordance with IAS 32 - 
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The comparative figures presented in the Financial 
Statements have been restated to reflect this reclassification (refer to Note 13 for impact on comparative 
figures presented). This reclassification had no impact on the equity or net assets attributable to holders of 
redeemable shares of the Fund for the periods presented. 

Ordinary Shares are classified as share capital of the Company. The Class A Shares are the most 
subordinate class of financial instruments in the Fund.  The Class A Shares provide investors with the right 
to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the investor’s share in the Fund’s net assets at 
each weekly redemption date and also in the event of the Fund’s liquidation. 

A puttable financial instrument that includes a contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or redeem 
that instrument for cash or another financial asset is classified as equity, if it meets all of the following 
conditions: 

it entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund’s net assets in the event of the Fund’s 
liquidation;

it is in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments;

all financial instruments in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of 
instruments have identical features;

apart from the contractual obligation for the Fund to repurchase or redeem the instrument for 
cash or another financial asset, the instrument does not include any other features that would 
require classification as a liability; and

the total expected cash flows attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on 
the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the 
recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument.

The Fund’s Class A Shares meet these conditions and are classified as equity. 

When Class A Shares recognised as equity are redeemed, the par value of the shares is presented as a 
deduction from net capital paid on shares.  Any premium or discount to par value is recognised as an 
adjustment to net capital paid on shares, or if insufficient to retained earnings. Redemptions payable are 
classified as financial liabilities and are measured at the present value of the redemption amounts. 

(g) Foreign currency 

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US dollars are translated at exchange rates 
prevailing at the year-end date. Transactions in other currencies during the year are translated to US dollars 
at the rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. The resulting profits or losses are disclosed in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss as net foreign exchange 
loss, except for those arising on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are 
recognised as a component of net realised gain on sale or change in net unrealised gain on financial 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 (h) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 
Management does not believe that the estimates and assumptions have a significant risk of causing material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(i) Forward contracts 

Forward contracts are recognised as unrealised gains and losses by marking to market on a daily basis to 
reflect the value of the contracts at the end of each day’s trading. The Fund’s investments in open forward 
contracts represented by unrealised gains or losses on the contracts are recorded as financial assets or 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as applicable, in the statement of financial position. Unrealised 
gains or losses on open forward contracts are calculated as the difference between the contract price at trade 
date and the contract’s applicable forward rate at valuation date. Forward contracts settled during the year 
are recorded in net realized gain (loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss on the statement of comprehensive income. The fund had no open forward contracts as at December 
31, 2013 (2012: one). 

(j) New accounting pronouncements 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods 
beginning after January 1, 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of 
these are expected to have a significant effect on the measurement of the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements of the Fund. However, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, will change the classification of 
financial assets. 

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments  

IFRS 9 specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets and liabilities, including some 
hybrid contracts. IFRS 9 improves and simplifies the approach for classification and measurement of 
financial assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39. IFRS 9 applies a consistent approach to 
classifying financial assets and replaces the numerous categories of financial assets in IAS 39, each of 
which had its own classification criteria. The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 is 1 January 2018 with 
early application permitted. Based on the initial assessment, the standard is not expected to have a material 
impact on the Fund. 

Amendment to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments: Presentation 

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 by explaining when an entity currently 
has a legally enforceable right to set-off and when gross settlement is considered to be equivalent to net 
settlement. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and 
interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. Based on the initial assessment, 
the standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Fund.
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3. Cash and cash equivalents 

      2013  2012 

 559,363 $ 380,1 $   rekorb ta hsaC
Money market funds held at broker    638,180  26,726 

   latoT $ 639,263 $ 390,681 
        

4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

The following tables summarise financial assets and liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss as 
at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related changes as presented in the statements of financial position and 
comprehensive income: 

tsoC      3102 Fair value

Financial assets held for trading: 
 008,249 $ 486,846 $   sdnuf lautuM  
 032,522  087,483    sdnuf egdeH  
 758,721,61  535,507,31    seitiruces ytiuqE  

 788,592,71 $ 999,837,41 $   latoT
        

tsoC      2102 Fair value

Financial assets held for trading: 
 512,107 $ 770,536 $   sdnuf lautuM  
 634,335  117,137    sdnuf egdeH  
 336,066,51  267,093,41    seitiruces ytiuqE  

 482,598,61 $ 055,757,51 $   latoT
        

Financial liabilities held for trading: 
  Forward foreign currency contract   $ –    $ (45,789) 
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4. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 2102  3102   

Net realised gain/ (loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities 
    at fair value through profit or loss: 
  Equity securities, mutual funds and hedge funds $ 1,547,986 $ (53,186) 

 332,24  )736,66(  stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF  

 )359,01( $ 943,184,1 $ latoT 
        

Change in net unrealised gain on financial assets and 
 liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 

 155,431 $ 879,722 $ sdnuf lautuM  
 )403,21(  527,83  sdnuf egdeH  

 424,528  154,251,1  seitiruces ytiuqE  
 )987,54(  987,54  stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF  

     
 288,109 $ 349,464,1 $ *latoT 
        

*Included in this amount for the year ended December 31, 2013 are transaction costs of $101,045. 

The net realised gain (loss) on sale of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
represents the difference between the acquisition price, or the carrying amount of a financial instrument and its 
sale/settlement price. The movement in net unrealised gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit and loss represents the difference between the acquisition price, or carrying amount of the 
respective financial instrument at the beginning of the period, and its carrying amount at the end of the period.  

There were no open forward foreign currency contract positions held by the Fund as at December 31, 2013. Per 
the Security Agreement dated November 29, 2011 and amended on February 20, 2012 with Comerica Bank, the 
Fund’s aggregate exposure on open forward foreign currency contracts may not exceed $10,000,000. The 
collateral for forward foreign currency contracts positions is all cash and financial assets held by the Fund in its 
Comerica Bank accounts. 

5. Fair values of financial instruments 

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 
inputs used in measuring fair value: 

Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the reporting Fund has the ability to access at the valuation date. An active market for the asset or 
liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency 
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

BIAS Global Portfolios, SPC
GLOBAL EQUITIES FUND – US$ Segregated Portfolio

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013  |  (EXPRESSED IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)

98



5. Fair values of financial instruments (continued) 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. Fair value is determined through the use of models or other 
valuation methodologies. Level 2 inputs include the following: 

a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.  

b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, that is, 
markets in which there are few transactions for the asset or liability, the prices are not current, 
or price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers, or in which 
little information is released publicly. 

c) Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g. interest rate 
and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, 
loss severities, credit risks and default rates). 

d) Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means. 

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs reflect the Fund’s own 
assumptions about how market participants would be expected to value the asset or liability. 
Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances, 
other than market data obtained from sources independent of the Fund and might include the 
Fund’s own data. 

An investment is always categorised as Level 1, 2 or 3 in its entirety. In certain cases, the fair 
value measurement for an investment may use a number of different inputs that fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value 
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
The assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires 
judgment and is specific to the investment. 

The following table analyses, under the fair value hierarchy, the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value at December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

 latoT 3 leveL 2 leveL 1 leveL 3102
Assets 
Money market funds $ 638,180 $ –    $ –    $ 638,180 
Mutual funds and hedge funds  –     1,168,030  –     1,168,031 
Equity securities: 

 United States  15,281,706  –     –     15,281,706 
 229,312     –     –  229,312  adanaC 
 220,382     –     –  220,382  learsI 

 Switzerland  349,207  –     –     349,207 

 Total equity securities  16,127,857  –     –     16,127,857 

 860,439,71 $    – $ 030,861,1 $ 730,667,61 $ 
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5. Fair values of financial instruments (continued) 

 latoT 3 leveL 2 leveL 1 leveL 2102
Assets 
Money market funds $ 26,726 $ –    $ –    $ 26,726 
Mutual funds and hedge funds  –     1,234,651  –     1,234,651 
Equity securities: 

 United States  12,149,638  –     –     12,149,638 
 United Kingdom  1,231,021  –     –     1,231,021 

 198,065     –     –  198,065  ylatI 
 664,984     –     –  664,984  adanaC 

 Netherlands  319,005  –     –     319,005 
 Bermuda  279,111  –     –     279,111 
 Germany  252,756  –     –     252,756 

 896,991     –     –  896,991  lizarB 
 Switzerland  179,047  –     –     179,047 

 Total equity securities  15,660,633  –     –     15,660,633 

 010,229,61 $    – $ 156,432,1 $ 953,786,51 $ 
Liabilities 
Forward foreign  

 exchange contract $ –    $ 45,789 $ –    $ 45,789 

 There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund’s assets and liabilities (by class) not 
measured at fair value at December 31, 2013 but for which fair value is disclosed. 

 latoT  3 leveL  2 leveL  1 leveL  

Assets
 380,1 $    – $    – $ 380,1 $  hsaC

Dividends receivable  –     9,484  –     9,484 

 765,01 $    – $ 484,9 $ 380,1 $ latoT
         

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and 
 accrued expenses $ –    $ 51,398 $ –    $ 51,398 
Redemptions payable  –     2,750  –     2,750 

 269,949,71 $    – $ 269,949,71 $    – $ latoT
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5. Fair values of financial instruments (continued) 

The assets and liabilities in the table above are carried at amortised cost; their carrying values are a reasonable 
approximation of fair value. 

Interest and dividends receivable classified in Level 2 include the contracted amounts for settlement of trades 
and other obligations due to the Fund. Accounts payable and accrued expenses and redemptions payable 
represent the contractual amounts and obligations due by the Fund for settlement of trades and expenses. 

6. Fees and expenses

Management fees 
The Investment Manager of the Fund is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Fund, including 
managing the investment portfolio, providing investment analysis and making decisions relating to the 
investment of assets of the Fund. The Fund is responsible for the payment of a management fee to the 
Investment Manager for its services to the Fund equal to 1.80% per annum (2012: 1.80%) of the net asset value 
(“NAV”) of the Fund, calculated weekly and payable monthly in arrears. During the year ended December 31, 
2013, management fees totalled $239,009 (2012: $333,597). As at December 31, 2013, management fees 
payable totalled $26,811 (2012: $25, 610) and were included within accounts payable and accrued expenses on 
the statement of financial position. The Investment Manager compensates the Sub-Manager for performing its 
delegated duties. 

Administration fees 
The Administrator is entitled to receive fees amounting to 0.10% per annum based on the weekly NAV of the 
Fund, and subject to an annual minimum fee of $30,000.  The administration fee is calculated weekly and is 
payable monthly in arrears. Administration fees for the year ended December 31, 2013 totalled $30,000 (2012: 
$32,000). 

The Administrator and the Investment Manager are reimbursed by the Fund for other fees and expenses that are 
identifiable with the Fund. 

Custody fees 
BIAS (Cayman) Limited is entitled to receive fees amounting to 0.10% per annum based on the average weekly 
NAV of the Fund. The custody fee is calculated weekly and payable monthly in arrears.  

Directors’ fees 
Each Director who is not an officer or employee of the Investment Manager or Sub-Manager receives a flat 
annual fee for serving in such capacity. The fee will be in accordance with reasonable and customary Directors’ 
fees. The Directors are entitled to reimbursement from the Fund for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by them on behalf of the Fund. 

7. Share capital 

The Company has an authorised share capital as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 of $50,001 divided into 100 
Ordinary Shares of $0.01 par value each and 5,000,000 non-voting, Redeemable Participating Shares of $0.01 
par value each divided upon issue into Classes for each of the segregated portfolio funds. The Ordinary Shares 
of the Company are owned by the Investment Manager, and are the only shares of the Company with voting 
rights. The Company has authorised the issuance of up to 1,000,000 Class A Shares in the Fund.
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7. Share capital (continued) 

The issued share capital of the Company and Fund is as follows: 

 2102 3102  
 eulaV raP rebmuN  

(US$) 
Number Par Value 

(US$) 
      
     :diap ylluf dna deussI

Company 
Ordinary Shares 100 1 100 1

      
Fund
Class A Shares 

Balance at beginning of year 
Issued during the year 
Redeemed during the year 

192,530 
24,590 

(44,015) 

1,925 
245 

(440) 

218,037 
31,720 

(57,227) 

2,180 
317 

(572) 
 529,1 035,291 454,3 501,371 raey fo dne ta ecnalaB

Each Class A Share represents a beneficial interest in the Fund ranking equally in all distributions when and as 
declared payable. An unlimited number of the Fund’s shares may be issued which are redeemable each Monday 
and at such other times as the Directors may determine in their discretion at the shareholders’ option at the then 
current NAV per share, in accordance with the terms of the Information Memorandum. 

Notwithstanding the redeemable shareholders’ rights to redemptions above, the Fund has the right, as set out in 
its Information Memorandum, to impose a redemption gate limit of 5% of the Class A Shares of the Fund or 
$100,000 in any redemption period in order to manage redemption levels and maintain the strength of the 
Fund’s capital base. 

In addition, no sales will be permitted within the first 90 days from initial purchase and a redemption fee of 2% 
will be assessed on Class A Shares redeemed within 12 months after their date of purchase and 1% on Class A 
Shares redeemed beyond 12 months, subject to a minimum fee of $25 per redemption request. The redemption 
fee will be shared equally between the Investment Manager and the Fund, and may be waived at the discretion 
of the Directors. 

The holders of the Ordinary Shares have a right to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any general 
meeting of the Company. The Ordinary Shares are not entitled to dividends nor do they participate in the profits 
of neither the Company nor the Fund. On a liquidation of the Company, the General Assets of the Company, 
being the assets of the Company which are not assets of the Segregated Portfolios, shall be available for 
distribution to the holders of the Ordinary Shares pro rata according to the number of Ordinary Shares held by 
them. The Ordinary Shares are held by the Investment Manager. 

The holders of the Class A Shares are not entitled to receive notice of, attend and vote as members at any 
general meeting of the Company. Holders of the Class A Shares are entitled to receive dividends and participate 
in the profits of the Fund. On a liquidation of the Fund, the holders of the Class A Shares have a right to 
participate in the surplus assets of the Fund after the payment of all creditors.  
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8. Income taxes 

The Cayman Islands at present impose no taxes on profit, income, capital gains or appreciation in value of the 
Fund. In the event that such taxes are levied, the Company has received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Cabinet of Cayman Islands exempting it from all such taxes until July 25, 2026. As such, no provision for such 
taxes is included in the accompanying financial statements. 

The Fund may, however, be subject to foreign withholding tax and capital gains tax in certain jurisdictions in 
respect of income derived from its investments. 

9. Financial instruments and associated risks 

The Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks in pursuing its stated investment objective and policy. These 
risks are defined in IFRS 7 as including market risk (which in turn includes price, interest rate and currency 
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Fund takes exposure to certain of these risks to generate investment 
returns on its portfolio, although these risks can also potentially result in a reduction in the Fund’s net assets. 
The Investment Manager will use its best endeavours to minimise the potential adverse effects of these risks on 
the Fund’s performance where it can do so while still managing the investments of the Fund in a way that is 
consistent with the Fund’s investment objective and policy.  

The risks, and the measures adopted by the Fund for managing these risks, are detailed below. 

(a) Price risk  

Market price risk is defined in IFRS 7 as the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or its future 
cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

The Fund’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of mutual funds and equity securities, 
the values of which are determined by market forces and there is accordingly a risk that market prices can 
change in a way that is adverse to the Fund’s performance. An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in 
the prices of mutual funds and equity securities as at the reporting date would have increased or decreased 
the net assets by $172,959 (2012: $168,953).

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s positions on a daily 
basis and reports regularly to the Board of Directors, which reviews the information on the Fund’s overall 
market exposures provided by the Investment Manager at its periodic meetings.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the overall market exposures and concentration of risk are limited to 
the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.

(b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Fund’s cash and cash equivalents are the only interest bearing instruments. The Fund’s other financial 
assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. 
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk 

The Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk is detailed in the table below: 

 tseretni-noN tseretnI  
 latoT gniraeb gniraeb 3102

Cash and cash equivalents $ 639,263 $ –    $ 639,263 
Financial assets at fair value through 

 788,592,71  788,592,71     –  ssol ro tiforp   
 823,5  823,5     –  stessa rehtO
 484,9  484,9     –  elbaviecer sdnediviD

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  –     (51,398)  (51,398) 
Redemptions payable                                                             –     (2,750)  (2,750) 

 418,598,71 $ 155,652,71 $ 362,936 $ latoT
        

 tseretni-noN tseretnI  
 latoT gniraeb gniraeb 2102

Cash and cash equivalents $ 390,681 $ –    $ 390,681 
Financial assets at fair value through 

 482,598,61  482,598,61     –  ssol ro tiforp   
 331,11  331,11     –  stessa rehtO
 613,13  613,13     –  elbaviecer sdnediviD

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  –     (69,213)  (69,213) 
  )324,913(  )324,913(     –  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 098,398,61 $ 902,305,61 $ 186,093 $ latoT
       

An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have increased or 
decreased the net assets by $6,393 (2012: $3,907). 

(c) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than US dollars, the functional currency of the 
Fund. The Fund is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities denominated in other 
currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

(c) Currency risk (continued) 

The fair values of the Fund’s total exposure to foreign currency and securities denominated in foreign 
currencies for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

 2102  3102     
 751,187 $ 600,512 $  ralloD naidanaC
 472,195  -   dnuoP hsitirB
 761,971  -   cnarF ssiwS
 678,477  -   oruE

 474,623,2 $ 600,512 $  latoT
      

The Fund’s net assets would increase or decrease by $2,150 (2012: 23,265) if the US dollar weakened or 
strengthened, respectively, by 100 basis points against the other currencies with all other variables 
remaining constant.

(d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Fund’s financial assets are greater than the financial liabilities and 
the assets held are liquid in nature. All liabilities are expected to mature within twelve months of the 
reporting date. As such, the Fund’s management does not anticipate any material losses as a result of 
liquidity risk.  

  eerht ot enO naht sseL 
 latoT shtnom htnom eno 3102

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ –    $ 51,398 $ 51,398 
 057,2     –  057,2  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 841,45 $ 893,15 $ 057,2 $ seitilibail latoT
               

   

  eerht ot enO naht sseL 
 latoT shtnom htnom eno 2102

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ –    $ 69,312 $ 69,312 
Financial liabilities at fair value  

 987,54  987,54     –  ssol ro tiforp hguorht   
 324,913     –  324,913  elbayap snoitpmedeR

 425,434 $ 101,511 $ 324,913 $ seitilibail latoT
        

     
As described in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Fund’s Class A Shares are redeemable at the 
shareholder’s option on a weekly basis, and therefore the Fund is potentially exposed to weekly 
redemptions by its shareholders.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued) 

(e) Credit risk 

Credit risk is defined in IFRS 7 as the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss 
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the 
fund.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on forward foreign 
exchange contracts is limited to the notional contract values of those positions. The credit risk exposure is 
represented by the value of those contracts in an unrealised gain position. At December 31, 2013, there 
were no open forward foreign exchange contracts (2012: one open). The following table sets out the fair 
values and the notional amount of derivative assets and liabilities held by the Fund as at the reporting date: 

lanoitoN eulaV riaF 3102

No positions open 

2012 

)000,007( $ )987,54( $ stcartnoc ycnerruc ngierof drawroF

The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are held with Comerica Bank, which is rated “A2” (2012: “A2”) 
based on rating agency Moody’s ratings. Management regularly monitors the institution’s credit risk and 
does not anticipate any significant losses from this concentration. Furthermore, the Fund only invests in 
investment grade fixed-income securities. 

The Fund’s maximum credit exposure at the reporting date is $639,263  (2012: $390,681) which is the sum 
of the cash and cash equivalents as reported in the statement of financial position. 

(f) Regulatory environment risk 

A changing regulatory environment, including, but not limited to, changes in relevant tax laws, securities 
laws, bankruptcy laws or accounting standards, may make the business of the Fund less profitable or 
unprofitable. The ability of the Fund to carry on business from the Cayman Islands or as a Cayman Islands 
Fund will depend upon its initial and continuing compliance with the relevant provisions of Cayman 
Islands law and, in particular, the Mutual Funds Law. Management regularly monitors the institution’s 
regulatory environment risk and does not anticipate any significant changes relevant to the Fund.

(g) Dependence on the Investment Manager risk 

The Investment Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the Fund. The success of the Fund 
depends upon the ability of the Investment Manager to develop and implement investment strategies that 
achieve the Fund’s investment objectives.  

10. Capital risk management 

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets of the Fund. The net assets can change significantly on a 
weekly basis as the Fund is subject to weekly subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of the Directors. 
The Fund’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern in 
order to provide returns for holders of Class A Shares and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a 
strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund. The Fund’s policies with 
respect to managing its capital risk are discussed in Note 7 above.  
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10. Capital risk management (continued) 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund’s policy is to monitor the level of weekly 
subscriptions and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of distributions the Fund pays 
to holders of Class A Shares accordingly.  

The Board of Directors and Investment Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets . 

The Fund is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

11. Related party transactions 

As at December 31, 2013, persons or entities related to the Directors, the Investment Manager, or the Sub-
Manager held 6.40% (2012: 18.4%) of the Class A Shares in the Fund. 

BIAS (Cayman) Limited earns trade commission revenue based on trades executed within the Fund’s normal course 
of business. Commissions are calculated by BIAS (Cayman) Limited based on gross trade amount and security 
type. This is recorded as part of net realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss or within change in net unrealized gain / (loss) on financial assets and liabilities through profit or loss 
within the statement of comprehensive income. BIAS (Cayman) Limited also earns custody fees as previously 
described in Note 6. 

BIAS (Cayman) Limited and the Sub-Manager are related to the Fund by virtue of common control. 

12.  Investment in unconsolidated structured entities 

The table below describes the type of structured entities that the Fund does not consolidate but in which it holds 
an interest:

Type of structured entity Nature and purpose Interest held by the Fund  

   elbameedeR ni tnemtsevnI  flaheb no stessa eganam oT dnuf tnemtsevnI
 .serahS noitapicitraP   dna srotsevni ytrap driht fo  

   rof seef tnemtsevni etareneg  
 .reganam tnemtsevni rieht  

   
  decnanif era selcihev esehT  

  fo eussi eht hguorht  
  noitapicitraP elbameedeR   

 .srotsevni ot serahS  
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12.  Investment in unconsolidated structured entities (continued) 

The table below sets out interests held by the Fund in unconsolidated structured entities as at December 31, 
2013 and 2012. The maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held. 

   
Carrying amount included in 

 riaf ta stessa laicnaniF   latoT     
 ssol ro tiforp hguorht eulav  stessA teN     

       3102
   

Equity long:
 Vanguard Global Enhanced Equity Fund                            80,854,772     942,799 
 Meridian Global Energy & Resources Fund Ltd            8,287,242 

Class A Series 1                                                              154,632 
 Meridian Gold & Resources Fund Ltd Class A           8,662,501                   70,598 

 2012 
Vanguard Global Enhanced Equity Fund                            42,010,269     701,214 

 Meridian Global Energy & Resources Fund Ltd  
Class A Series 1                                      9,233,114                                   267,318              

 Meridian Gold & Resources Fund Ltd Class A        14,960,090                                   266,118             

During the year, the Fund did not provide financial support to the unconsolidated structured entities and has no 
intention of providing financial or other support. The Fund can redeem shares in the above investment funds on 
a daily basis.

13.  Prior period restatement  

As discussed in Note 2(f), the Class A Shares of the Fund were presented as financial liabilities as at and for the 
year ended December 31, 2012. The Class A Shares have been classified as equity in accordance with IFRS and 
the following corrections have been made to the comparative figures presented in the Financial Statements: 

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares of $16,893,890 as at December 31, 2012 has been 
disaggregated into Net capital paid in on shares of capital stock and Retained earnings as presented in the 
comparative figures on the statement of financial position for the period ended December 31, 2013. There 
has been no impact on the value of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares or total equity as 
a result of this reclassification for the periods presented. 

The statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares has been reclassified to 
be presented as a statement of changes in equity.  

14.  Subsequent events 

From January 1, 2014 through June 24, 2014 the Fund received subscriptions of $735,295 and paid redemptions 
of $1,719,163. 
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